
 

1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Committee 
 

Meeting: Tuesday, 1st December 2020 at 6.00 pm in Virtual Meeting - 
Microsoft Teams (a viewing link will be published on the Council’s 

website at least 24 hours prior to the meeting) 
 
 

Membership: Cllrs. Taylor (Chair), Lewis (Vice-Chair), D. Brown, J. Brown, Dee, 
Finnegan, Hampson, Hansdot, Hyman, Lugg, Toleman and Walford 

Contact: Democratic and Electoral Services 
01452 396126 
democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk 

 

AGENDA 

VIEWING ARRANGEMENTS FOR REMOTE MEETINGS 
 

View the meeting here: https://bit.ly/3l4ZE93  
 
The meeting is being broadcast live using Microsoft Teams. We recommend that you install 
the Microsoft Teams app on your device for the best viewing experience. If viewing via a 
web browser, please note that this is not possible if using Safari; instead please download 
the Microsoft Teams app or the Microsoft Edge browser. 
 
Further advice on accessing meetings through Teams, is available here:  
https://support.office.com/en-us/article/Attend-a-live-event-in-Teams-a1c7b989-ebb1-
4479b750c86c9bc98d84  
 

1.   APOLOGIES  
 
To receive any apologies for absence. 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
To receive from Members, declarations of the existence of any disclosable pecuniary, or non-
pecuniary, interests and the nature of those interests in relation to any agenda item. Please 
see Agenda Notes. 

3.   MINUTES (Pages 7 - 12) 
 
To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on the 3rd November 2020.  

4.   LATE MATERIAL  
 
Please note that any late material in respect of the applications detailed below will be 
published as a supplement on the Council’s website in the late afternoon of the day of the 
meeting. 

mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk
https://bit.ly/3l4ZE93
https://support.office.com/en-us/article/Attend-a-live-event-in-Teams-a1c7b989-ebb1-4479b750c86c9bc98d84
https://support.office.com/en-us/article/Attend-a-live-event-in-Teams-a1c7b989-ebb1-4479b750c86c9bc98d84


 

2 
 

5.   LAND EAST OF HEMPSTED LANE, GLOUCESTER - 20/00600/REM (Pages 13 - 
38) 
 
Application for Determination: - 
 
Reserved Matters application (for details of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) for a 
50 unit residential development with open space including orchard, cycleways, footpaths, and 
associated works (pursuant to outline planning permission ref. 13/01032/OUT). 

6.   DELEGATED DECISIONS (Pages 39 - 52) 
 
To consider a schedule of applications determined under delegated powers during the month 
of October 2020.  

7.   DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Tuesday 5th January 2021.  

 
 
 

 
Jon McGinty 
Managing Director 
 
Date of Publication: Monday, 23 November 2020 
 
 



 

3 
 

NOTES 
 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
The duties to register, disclose and not to participate in respect of any matter in which a member 
has a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest are set out in Chapter 7 of the Localism Act 2011. 
 

Disclosable pecuniary interests are defined in the Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests) Regulations 2012 as follows – 
 

Interest 
 

Prescribed description 
 

Employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain. 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than 
from the Council) made or provided within the previous 12 months 
(up to and including the date of notification of the interest) in 
respect of any expenses incurred by you carrying out duties as a 
member, or towards your election expenses. This includes any 
payment or financial benefit from a trade union within the meaning 
of the Trade Union and Labour Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992. 
 

Contracts Any contract which is made between you, your spouse or civil 
partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or civil 
partner (or a body in which you or they have a beneficial interest) 
and the Council 
(a)   under which goods or services are to be provided or works are 

to be executed; and 
(b)   which has not been fully discharged 
 

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the Council’s area. 
 

For this purpose “land” includes an easement, servitude, interest or 
right in or over land which does not carry with it a right for you, your 
spouse, civil partner or person with whom you are living as a 
spouse or civil partner (alone or jointly with another) to occupy the 
land or to receive income. 
 

Licences Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
Council’s area for a month or longer. 
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) – 
 

(a)   the landlord is the Council; and 
(b)   the tenant is a body in which you, your spouse or civil partner 

or a person you are living with as a spouse or civil partner has 
a beneficial interest 

 

Securities Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where – 
 

(a)   that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land 
in the Council’s area and 

(b)   either – 
i.   The total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 

or one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
body; or 

ii.   If the share capital of that body is of more than one class, 
the total nominal value of the shares of any one class in 
which you, your spouse or civil partner or person with 



 

4 
 

whom you are living as a spouse or civil partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total 
issued share capital of that class. 

 

For this purpose, “securities” means shares, debentures, debenture 
stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme 
within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 
and other securities of any description, other than money 
deposited with a building society. 
 

NOTE: the requirements in respect of the registration and disclosure of Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interests and withdrawing from participating in respect of any matter 
where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest apply to your interests and those 
of your spouse or civil partner or person with whom you are living as a spouse or 
civil partner where you are aware of their interest. 

 

Access to Information 
Agendas and reports can be viewed on the Gloucester City Council website: 
www.gloucester.gov.uk and are available to view five working days prior to the meeting 
date. 
 

For enquiries about Gloucester City Council’s meetings please contact Democratic 
Services, 01452 396126, democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk. 
 

If you, or someone you know cannot understand English and need help with this information, or if 
you would like a large print, Braille, or audio version of this information please call 01452 396396. 
 

Recording of meetings 
Please be aware that meetings may be recorded. There is no requirement for those 
wishing to record proceedings to notify the Council in advance; however, as a courtesy, 
anyone wishing to do so is advised to make the Chair aware before the meeting starts.  
 

Any recording must take place in such a way as to ensure that the view of Councillors, 
Officers, the Public and Press is not obstructed.  The use of flash photography and/or 
additional lighting will not be allowed unless this has been discussed and agreed in 
advance of the meeting. 

 

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/
mailto:democratic.services@gloucester.gov.uk


 

5 
 

Copyright Notice for viewing documents via Public 
Access 

 
Planning application information submitted to the Council is protected by the Copyright Acts 
(Section 47, 1988 Act). You may only use material which is downloaded and/or printed for 
consultation purposes, to compare current applications with previous schemes and to check 
whether developments have been completed in accordance with approved plans. Further 
copies must not be made without the prior permission of the copyright owner. If you link to 
Public Access you have acknowledged that you have read, understood and agree to the 
copyright and other limitations. 
 
Gloucester City Council reserve the right to remove or not display certain planning 
application information for the confidentiality or other reasons. 

 
 
 

 
HUMAN RIGHTS 

 
In compiling the recommendations on the following reports we have given full consideration 
to all aspects of the Human Rights Act 1998 in relation to the applicant and/or the occupiers 
of any affected properties. In particular, regard has been had to Article 8 of the ECHR 
(Right to respect for private and family life, home and correspondence); Article 1 of the First 
Protocol (Right to the use and enjoyment of property) and the requirement to ensure that 
any interference with the right in this Article is both in accordance with the law and 
proportionate. A balance needs to be drawn between the right to develop land in 
accordance with planning permission and the rights under Article 8 and also Article 1 of the 
First Protocol of adjacent occupiers. On assessing the issues raised by the applications no 
particular matters, other than those referred to in the reports, warrant any different action to 
that recommended.  
 

 
 
 

 
EQUALITY ACT 2010 

 
In considering this matter, full consideration has been given to the need to comply with the 
Public Sector Equality Duty under the Equality Act 2010 and in particular to the obligation to 
not only take steps to stop discrimination, but also to the promotion of equality, including the 
promotion of equality of opportunity and the promotion of good relations.  An equality 
impact assessment has been carried out and it is considered that the Council has fully 
complied with the legal requirements. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 

PLANNING COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING : Tuesday, 3rd November 2020 

   

PRESENT : Cllrs. Taylor (Chair), Lewis (Vice-Chair), D. Brown, J. Brown, Dee, 
Derbyshire, Finnegan, Hansdot, Hyman, Lugg and Toleman 
 
Officers in Attendance 
Business Transformation Manager (Planning) 
Highway Development Manager, Gloucestershire County Council 
Principal Planning Officer (Housing Delivery) 
Principal Planning Officer 
Planning Officer 
Arboriculturist 
Solicitor, One Legal  
Democratic and Electoral Services Officer 
  
 
 

APOLOGIES : Cllrs. Walford 
 
 

Note: At the beginning of the meeting, the Chair read a statement on behalf of 
Councillor Melvin in reference to comments made in her speech at September’s 
Planning Committee.  
 
 

23. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

24. MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on the 6th October 2020 were confirmed by the 
Chair as a correct record. 
 

25. LATE MATERIAL  
 
Late material had been circulated in respect of Agenda Item 5 – Land to the South 
of Rudloe Drive (20/00359/REM) and Agenda Item 6 – Land at Barnwood Link 
Road (20/00775/REM).   
 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
03.11.20 

 

2 

26. LAND TO THE SOUTH OF RUDLOE DRIVE, KINGSWAY, QUEDGELEY, 
GLOUCESTER - 20/00359/REM  
 
Councillor Toleman was not present at the start of this item and therefore took no 
part in the discussion of it.   
 
The Principal Planning Officer presented the report detailing a reserved matters 
application for approval of access, appearance, landscaping, layout and scale 
following outline planning permission reference: (17/01199/OUT), for the erection of 
80 dwellings and infrastructure, vehicular and pedestrian access to Rudloe Drive. 
 
 
The Democratic Officer read a statement on behalf of an agent of Barton 
Willmore in favour of the application.  
 
 
Members Debate   
 

- The Vice-Chair stated that the application was well designed. 
 
 
The Chair moved, and the Vice-Chair seconded the officer’s recommendation. 
 
 
RESOLVED that: -  Approval of the reserved matters of access, layout, scale, 
appearance and landscaping be delegated to the City Growth and Delivery 
Manager, subject to the confirmation of suitable management and maintenance 
arrangements for landscaping/trees outside of the residential curtilages and 
conditions outlined in the report and late material.  
  
 
 

27. LAND AT  BARNWOOD LINK ROAD,  GLOUCESTER - 20/00775/REM  
 
The Principal Planning Officer presented the report detailing an application for 
approval of reserved matters (for appearance, landscaping and layout) for the 
erection of a new Class B8 storage and distribution facility and associated parking 
(pursuant to outline planning permission ref: 18/00299/FUL).   
 
The Principal Planning Officer noted that minor amendments needed to be made to 
the approved drawing numbers to ensure that they were consistent with the revised 
landscaping drawings, particularly those referred to in condition 5 and 6 of the 
report. This meant that the updated officer recommendation was for delegated 
authority to be granted to the Planning Manager for approval of the reserved 
matters application, subject to the amendment of conditions to reflect the most 
recent amended drawings.  
 
 
The Democratic Officer read a statement on behalf of an agent of Carney 
Sweeney in favour of the application.  
 

Page 8



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
03.11.20 

 

3 

 
The Highways Development Manager responded to members questions as follows: 
 

- The signal control junction would have been designed with the assumption 
that there would be a degree of development in the area, including the 
development proposed on the application site.  

- Gloucestershire Highways receive data from the signals team so they could 
undertake remedial works if that was required. 

- There would be a cycleway throughout the construction of the development.  
 
 
The Principal Planning Officer responded to members questions as follows: 
 

- Condition 31 of the outline application stated that it was a requirement to 
maintain a safe site during development of the footpath diversion.  

- The Secretary of State had agreed to the proposed footpath diversion. 
- The Horsbere Brook would be unaffected by the development. 

 
 
Members Debate 
 

- The Chair stated that he approved of the design of the application.  

 
 
The Chair moved, and the Vice-Chair seconded the officer’s amended 
recommendation. 
 
 
RESOLVED that: - Delegated authority be granted to the Planning Manager to 
grant the reserved matters application, subject to conditions set out in the report, 
late material and amended conditions to refer to the updated drawings. 
 

28. 15 BARNWOOD AVENUE, GLOUCESTER, GL4 3DA - 20/00730/TPO  
 
The Arboriculturist presented the report detailing an application to fell a protected 
cedar tree. 
 
The property owner spoke in opposition to the officer’s recommendation on 
the grounds that the tree was too large, represented a danger to life and that 
large branches had previously fallen. 
 
The Solicitor responded to members questions regarding liability if there was 
significant damage done to the tree as follows:  
 
 

- It was the landowners responsibility to ensure that the tree was sufficiently 
safe. However, there were very limited circumstances where the Local 
Planning Authority may have to pay for compensation within 12 months of 
refusal of consent.  

Page 9



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
03.11.20 

 

4 

- The question of liability was based on whether loss/damage was reasonably 
foreseeable at the time consent was refused. Given the applicant’s 
Arboriculturists report does not recommend felling and simply recommends 
pruning combined with the outcome of the officer’s site visit, officer’s report 
and presentation it would seem unlikely that loss/damage would be  
reasonably foreseeable at this stage provided the recommended works are 
carried out by the landowner, but ultimately whether loss/damage is 
reasonably foreseeable is a matter for the Council’s Arboriculturist. 

 
 
The Arboriculturist agreed with the Solicitors comments and responded to members 
questions as follows: 
 

- The applicant could appeal the decision to the Planning Inspectorate within 
28 days of the decision if the committee refused the application to fell.  

- If a branch suddenly became unsafe, there would be no need to make a 
formal application for removal.  

 
  
 
 
Members Debate 
 
 

- A member stated that she agreed with the officer’s recommendation.  
- The Vice-Chair said that he had sympathy with the property owner, as it was 

a large tree. However, he added that he agreed with the tree officer that it 
was a healthy tree and therefore, he would support the officer’s 
recommendation.  

- A member said that she echoed the Vice-Chair’s comments.   
- A member noted that he believed that it was a difficult decision and had 

sympathy with the property owner but was leaning towards supporting the 
officer’s recommendation.   

 
 
The Chair moved, and the Vice-Chair seconded the officer’s recommendation. 
 
 
RESOLVED THAT: - The application to fell the tree is refused.  
 

29. THE LANNET, KING EDWARDS AVENUE, GLOUCESTER -  20/00678/FUL  
 
The Planning Officer presented the report detailing an application for the 
refurbishment of changing rooms, including replacing flat roof with pitched, external 
render and provision of 2 new openings to pitch side for access. provision of 
container storage to side of building. 
 
 
The Chair moved, and the Vice-Chair seconded the officer’s recommendation. 
 
 

Page 10



PLANNING COMMITTEE 
03.11.20 

 

5 

RESOLVED that: -   Application is granted subject to conditions set out in the 
report.  
 

30. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The schedule of applications determined under delegated powers during the month 
of September 2020. 
 
RESOLVED that: - The schedule be noted. 
 

31. DATE OF NEXT MEETING  
 
Tuesday 1st December, 2020.  
 
Note: The agenda item incorrectly stated that the date of next meeting was 
Tuesday 3rd November 2020.  
 
 

Time of commencement:  6.00 pm  
Time of conclusion:  7.35 pm  

Chair 
 

 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



GLOUCESTER CITY COUNCIL - DEVELOPMENT CONTROL 
 

Committee: Planning 
  

Date: 1st December 2020 
  

Address/Location: Land east of Hempsted Lane, Gloucester  
  

Application No: 20/00600/REM 
  

Ward: Westgate 
  

Expiry Date: 09.10.2020 
  

Applicant: Bellway Homes Limited 
  

Proposal: 

Reserved Matters application (for details of appearance, landscaping, layout 
and scale) for a 50 unit residential development with open space including 
orchard, cycleways, footpaths, and associated works (pursuant to outline 
planning permission ref. 13/01032/OUT) 

  

Report by: Adam Smith 
  

Appendices: 
Site location plan  
Site layout plan 

 
1.0 SITE DESCRIPTION AND PROPOSAL 
  
1.1 The application site is an existing field on the east side of Hempsted Lane. To the immediate 

north there is a public path and a children’s play area, north of this a private sports pitch. To 
the east there is an area of public open space, and further south on the east side a housing 
development. To the south is a public path and housing beyond. To the west side is 
Hempsted Lane and some residential properties on the far side. There is a residential 
property on the east side of Hempsted Lane (Manor Farm House) which immediately borders 
the application site. The Hempsted Conservation Area boundary runs along the lane, then 
extends eastwards to include the south western part of the site and Manor Farm House.  

  
1.2 The site benefits from outline planning permission, including the means of access, for 

residential development. The current application is made pursuant to the outline planning 
permission, to seek approval of the reserved matters of appearance, landscaping, layout and 
scale of the development.  

  
1.3 As required by the legal agreement and conditions, the scheme includes the southern part of 

the site as public open space, which is proposed to be adopted by the City Council. This 
includes the remnants of an orchard on the east side. The orchard is bounded by a hedge 
line and much of the site perimeter is bounded by a mix of hedges and trees.  

  
1.4 The northern part of the site is proposed for the full 50 units permitted, served off the 

approved access point from Hempsted Lane to the west. The layout includes green links to 
the east and west sides with the buildings set in from the site boundary. A further footpath link 
is also proposed to the east onto the Council’s adjacent public open space. This is where a 
separate planning permission has been granted for drainage ponds that would serve the site. 
This land is outside the current application site but the proposals include surface water 
connections into this land. The site is sloped and the proposals also include changes in 
ground levels.  

   
1.5 The application is referred to the Planning Committee because it comprises of 50 residential 

units.  Page 13

Agenda Item 5



  
 

2.0 RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY 
  

Application 
Number 

Proposal Decision Decision 
Date    

13/01032/OUT Outline planning application for residential 
development of site, open space including 
orchard, cycleways, footpaths, and 
associated works. Means of access offered 
for approval (layout, scale, appearance and 
landscaping reserved for future 
consideration) 

GOP 18.12.2018  

 
16/01055/FUL 

Adjacent land to north east: 
Engineering operation to construct 
balancing pond(s) and associated 
landscaping 

 
G3Y 

 
07.04.2017  

 

3.0 RELEVANT PLANNING POLICY 
  
3.1 The following planning guidance and policies are relevant to the consideration of this 

application: 
  
3.2 National guidance 

National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) and Planning Practice Guidance 
  
3.3 Development Plan 

Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core Strategy (Adopted 11 December 
2017) 
Relevant policies from the JCS include: 

 

SD3 – Sustainable design and construction 
SD4 – Design requirements 
SD6 – Landscape 
SD8 – Historic Environment 
SD9 – Biodiversity and geodiversity 
SD10 – Residential development 
SD11 – Housing mix and standards 
SD12 – Affordable housing  
SD14 – Health and environmental quality 
INF1 –Transport network 
INF2 – Flood risk management 
INF3 – Green Infrastructure 
INF4 – Social and community Infrastructure 

  
3.4 City of Gloucester Local Plan (Adopted 14 September 1983) 

The statutory Development Plan for Gloucester includes the partially saved 1983 City of 
Gloucester Local Plan. Paragraph 215 of the NPPF states that ‘…due weight should be given 
to relevant policies in existing plans according to their degree of consistency with this 
framework (the closer the policies in the plan to the policies in the Framework, the greater the 
weight that may be given.’ The majority of the policies in the 1983 Local Plan are out-of-date 
and superseded by later planning policy including the NPPF and the Joint Core Strategy. 
None of the saved policies are relevant to the consideration of this application. 

  
3.5 Emerging Development Plan 

Page 14



Gloucester City Plan 

The Gloucester City Plan (“City Plan”) will deliver the JCS at the local level and provide 
policies addressing local issues and opportunities in the City. The Pre-Submission version of 
the Gloucester City Plan (City Plan) was approved for publication and submission at the 
Council meeting held on 26 September 2019. On the basis of the stage of preparation that 
the plan has reached, and the consistency of its policies with the NPPF, the emerging 
policies of the plan can be afforded limited to moderate weight in accordance with paragraph 
48 of the NPPF, subject to the extent to which there are unresolved objections to each 
individual policy (the less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that 
may be given). 
 
Relevant policies from the emerging Gloucester City Plan include:  

A1 – Effective and efficient use of land and buildings 
A2 – Affordable housing 
A6 – Accessible and adaptable homes 
C1 – Active design and accessibility 
D1 – Historic environment 
D2 – Non designated heritage assets 
D3 – Recording and advancing understanding of heritage assets 
E1 – Landscape character and sensitivity 
E2 – Biodiversity and geodiversity 
E4 – Trees, woodlands and hedgerows 
E5 – Green infrastructure: Building with nature 
E6 – Flooding, sustainable drainage, and wastewater 
F1 – Materials and finishes 
F2 – Landscape and planting 
F3 – Community safety  
F6 – Nationally described space standards 
G1 – Sustainable transport 
G2 – Charging infrastructure for electric vehicles 
G4 - Walking 

  
3.6 Other Planning Policy Documents 

Gloucester Local Plan, Second Stage Deposit 2002  
Regard is also had to the 2002 Revised Deposit Draft Local Plan. This has been subjected to 
two comprehensive periods of public and stakeholder consultation and adopted by the 
Council for development control purposes. The following “day-to-day” development 
management policies, which are not of a strategic nature and broadly accord with the policies 
contained in the NPPF, should be given some weight: 
  
BE.2 – Views and skyline  

  
3.7 Supplementary Planning Guidance/Documents 

Heights of Buildings guidelines (November 2008) 
Hempsted Conservation Area Appraisal 
SPG1 – Sustainable Urban Drainage Systems (2004) 
SPG6 – New housing and open space (2001) 

  
3.8 Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 provides that 

where an area is designated as a conservation area 'special attention shall be paid to the 
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character or appearance of the area'.  

  
3.9 All policies can be viewed at the relevant website address:- national policies: 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2   Page 15

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/national-planning-policy-framework--2


Gloucester City policies: 
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/Pages/
current-planning-policy.aspx  

  
4.0 CONSULTATIONS 
  
4.1 The Highway Authority raises no objection. 
  
4.2 The Conservation Officer raises no objection in principle but notes that the proposed 

materials are poor quality and need to be resolved under condition.  
  
4.3 The Landscaping consultant raised several concerns and recommendations on the 

original submission; provision of a five-year maintenance schedule and planting 
specification; proposed amendments to the varieties, specification and locations of trees; 
provision of planting screening to Plots 22 and 23 and the substation; additional planting to 
enhance the existing hedge; the size of the proposed green link, and landscape maintenance 
along the path; and that carefully considered tree and shrub planting would help to integrate 
the attenuation ponds further (note – these are outside the application site and subject to a 
separate permission). Following the amended submission the consultant confirmed that the 
planting plan has been amended in accordance with their recommendations.  

  
4.4 The Civic Trust has not commented.  
  
4.5 Severn Trent Water has not commented.  
  
4.6 The Drainage Consultant raises no objections. 
  
4.7 The Tree Officer raised several requests initially;  

An up to date tree survey, a 5 year maintenance plan to ensure the trees planted successfully 
establish, and tree pit planting specifications, all of which has now been submitted and 
accepted.  
Requests to amend the proposed tree planting varieties, which has been done and the 
Officer supports the new proposals.  
The amendments to the scheme have addressed the Officer’s commented and he has no 
further comments to make.  

  
4.8 The Housing Strategy and Enabling Officer raised the following; 

 
The proposal of 20 affordable dwellings, delivering 40% affordable housing as stated in the 
s106 agreement is welcomed.  
 
The breakdown of affordable units proposed is not consistent with that set out in the s106 
agreement (some of the changes could be accepted, others not). Amendments are 
suggested that would make the proposal acceptable in this respect.  
 

The development is expected to have clusters of no more than 6 to 8 Affordable Units in a 
cluster. Two clusters of affordable housing are proposed. While the cluster towards the north 
of the site is rather large it is well dispersed through the use of open space. The affordable 
family sized housing should be integrated throughout the development. The two 4-bedroom 
affordable rent properties should not be directly opposite each other.  
 
The Building Regulations M4(2) proposals are compliant with the S106. Gloucester’s policy 
has changed since the s106 and an increase in the number would be welcomed.  
 

The applicant proposes 2 units in line with Building Regulation M4(3) which meets City Plan 
Page 16

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/planning-policy/Pages/current-planning-policy.aspx


and Section 106 requirements.  
 
Given the range of needs for M4(3) homes we would expect one category M4(3) dwelling to 
be a 3- or 4-bed house, to accommodate larger families who have wheelchair users.  

  
4.9 The Urban Design Adviser raised the following: 

 
Close board fence should not be used where it is visible from the public realm, and should be 
a screen wall.  
There needs to be gaps in the timber knee rail to allow access into the open space.  
The layout around plots 47/48 and 50 is poor and unresolved. Plots 47/48 present a rear wall 
to the street and overlooks a substation  
The location of the garage and parking for plot 50 somewhat undoes the usefulness of 
having a corner turning unit.  
The garage for plot 38 and 11 is directly in front of the unit and also at the end of the vista. 
This will look poor in the street scene and for the amenity of that property.  
The mix of dwelling types is poor, not in line with the SHMA and does not provide for a mixed 
and balanced community in line with requirements in the national design guide.  
A duo-plain tile would be preferable as the SL8 is very large and of low quality given the 
location of the site next to the conservation area. 
Plots 10 and 34 do not turn the corner with active frontage. Plot 10 in particular is in a 
prominent position.   
The appearance of the affordable dwellings is very poor in comparison with the open market 
units, the 6b4p unit has a very unbalanced front elevation.  

  
4.10 The Open Space consultant raised issues in the original consultation regarding provision of 

links to the north to the play area, provision of suitable street furniture and pathways in the 
POS to south, amendments to the landscaping proposals, railing protection to vulnerable 
orchard trees, details of and amendments to boundary treatments, size of the open strip to 
east side, provision of a tree survey, and screening of the substation. Following the amended 
submission the consultant has confirmed that the original queries have largely been 
addressed or reasons given why they could not be accommodated and has no further 
comments.  

  
5.0 PUBLICITY AND REPRESENTATIONS 
  
5.1 Neighbouring properties were notified (and a second set of notifications given for the revised 

submission) and press and site notices were published. 
  
5.2 12 representations have been received raising the following issues: 
 Developments destroying village and community spirit.  

Traffic, noise and odour increases.  
Anti social behaviour issues.  
Loss of green environment. Green spaces should be protected.  
Harm to rural feel of village.  
Brownfield sites should be built on first.  
Existing sewerage system problems. Drainage should not use the main sewer in the lane 
which is overloaded.  
Surface water runoff into The Gallops.  
Use of the adjacent Council land for drainage ponds is acceptable on the basis that the 
village will gain the open space at the south.  
The drainage ponds should be on the building site not land owned by the Council or 
Hempsted Village.  
The City Council should confirm how the proposed green space would be maintained in a 
manner to be useable by villagers.  Page 17



The City Council needs to confirm that their maintenance of the onward drainage ditch will be 
appropriate.  
The pedestrian pathway needs to connect with the gate and hard surface at the south east 
corner which is a future desire line.  
Too many dwellings at too high a density, out of character. 
Access should be via The Gallops.  
Poor condition of road surface.  
Where would visitors park.  
The local school is full and expansion is not possible.  
No health provisions being made for this area.  
Incorrect and misleading annotations on Cathedral view plan.  
Application site plan implies a brick screen wall to the whole perimeter. Impact of such a 
perimeter wall.  
Impact on house prices.  
Loss of areas for children to play and enjoy.  
Loss of the cows and horses grazing in the field.  
 
The 3 representations relating to Manor Farm House raise the following issues: 
Proposals do not comply with Condition 5 of the outline permission in respect of the 
maximum extent of development on the site. This requirement should not be set aside. The 
size of the buffer gap is reduced. 
Pedestrians would be funnelled through the gap between the proposed units and Manor 
Farm House and brought closer to the house than envisaged in the outline stage plans. 
Impact on the conditions of the ground here in wet conditions. Drainage from the Farm House 
garage roof runs into the field here and requires a solution to prevent this exacerbating the 
problem.  
Absence of landscape and security proposals on the northern and eastern boundaries of the 
Farm House. There has been no previous public access to the fields, there is now potential 
for trespassing if not made more secure. They want a new hedgerow and fence to be 
implemented. (The second representation notes an agreement that has now been reached 
between the applicant and the resident to accommodate their requests. The third 
representation updates further and notes that until a fence and a hedgerow are shown at the 
shared boundary on plans the objection still stands (it appears a fence has so far been 
agreed).  
No proposals to replace the septic tank / overflow pipe serving the Farm House and is within 
the application site. They require a connection to the mains system at the developer’s 
expense. The second representation notes the updated proposals to remove it and provide a 
connection and considers this should be secured by condition.  

  
5.3 The full content of all correspondence on this application can be viewed on:  

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-a
ccess.aspx  

  
6.0 OFFICER OPINION 
  
6.1 Legislative background 

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires the Local 
Planning Authority to determine planning applications in accordance with the Development 
Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise.  

  
6.2 Section 70(2) of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended) states that in 

dealing with a planning application, the Local Planning Authority should have regard to the 
following: 
a) the provisions of the development plan, so far as material to the application; 
b) any local finance considerations, so far as material to the application; and 

Page 18

http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-access.aspx
http://www.gloucester.gov.uk/resident/planning-and-building-control/Pages/public-access.aspx


c) any other material considerations. 
  
6.3 The development plan consists of the Gloucester, Cheltenham and Tewkesbury Joint Core 

Strategy (JCS) and the partially saved 1983 City of Gloucester Local Plan. However, as 
outlined earlier, the 1983 Local Plan is considered to be out-of-date. 

  

6.4 It is considered that the main issues with regard to this application are as follows: 

 Principle and compliance with the outline permission  

 Design, layout and landscaping, and heritage 

 Housing provision 

 Traffic and transport 

 Residential amenity  

 Drainage and flood risk 

 Open space 
  
6.5 Principle and compliance with the outline permission 

Outline planning permission has been granted and the principle of residential development of 
this site for up to 50 residential units has been accepted. The in-principle considerations, 
including traffic impact, noise, loss of the field and provision of infrastructure have already 
been made at the outline stage. This application is to consider the layout, landscaping, 
appearance and scale of the development.  

  
6.6 The outline permission sets out a series of particular requirements for the development, and 

for reserved matters submissions. Compliance with these is noted as follows:  
 
Condition 5 - Heights of buildings to conform to a specified plan. This plan shows a maximum 
height of 2 storeys (10m to ridgeline), with 3 areas of feature buildings, allowed to 2.5 
storeys, 11.5m to ridgeline. The submitted buildings conform to this.  
 
Condition 5 - Extent of residential buildings and roads to conform to a specified plan – this is 
broadly complied with but is subject to an objection from a neighbouring resident. The 
applicant however considers that the proposals are in compliance with this and has 
submitted an overlay plan. The area of the site which the objection focuses on is at the south 
western part of the developable area near to Manor Farm House.  
 
The front garden of plot 1 has been cut in to allow a straighter route in front of it. On a point of 
detail the corner of the building at plot 1 encroaches outside the developable area shown on 
the specified outline stage plan. The applicant is aware of this but considers the proposals to 
be compliant. While there is a conflict between the two plans, it is not considered to have a 
material detrimental effect when considering the purpose of condition 5, which was to secure 
a broadly acceptable position for the buildings and the open space, achieve the open space 
links around the site edge, and set buildings back from the Conservation Area edge and road 
frontage. All of those planning objectives are still achieved in the proposed layout. The 
objection does not raise planning issues that I consider would be materially harmed by 
encroachment beyond that set out in the condition other than the point of principle (which is 
understood), and it undermining the integrity of the decision making progress and trust in it. 
While the frustration of the objector is understood it is not considered that the divergence in 
the plans actually causes any significant planning harm on the ground.  
 
Condition 6 – Limit development to 50 units. This is complied with.  
 
Condition 7- Cross sections required to show ground levels and finished floor levels. These 
are provided and they are discussed in the design and the amenity sections below.  
 
Condition 10 – Reserved matters to show waste/recycling provision. Shared waste storage is Page 19



shown on the plans and the cover letter states that for individual dwellings storage would be 
on hardstandings in rear gardens with all properties noted to have side gates for access.  
 
Condition 14 – Reserved matters to include a study to demonstrate preservation of views of 
the Cathedral from the footpath to the south of the site. A range of information has been 
submitted to address this. This is assessed in the design section below.  
 
Condition 15 – Requirement for a green link between the southern open space and that to 
the north east of at least 10m wide. In the revised submissions buildings have been set back 
and the link widened; the plan shows 10m is achieved.  
 
Condition 27 – Vehicle parking and turning facilities to be provided on site. This is provided 
and commented on in the highways section below. 
 
The s106 agreement associated with the outline permission sets out requirements for 40% 
affordable housing, and a breakdown of the types required. It also sets out requirements for 
the provision of public open space and drainage works. These issues are commented on by 
topic below in as much as they affect the assessment of the reserved matters.  

  
6.7 Design, layout and landscaping, and heritage 

The NPPF states that good design is a key aspect of sustainable development, and sets out 
criteria for decision making including ensuring that developments are visually attractive, 
sympathetic to local character and history while not preventing or discouraging appropriate 
innovation or change, establish/maintain a strong sense of place, optimise the potential of 
the site to accommodate an appropriate amount and mix of development, and create safe, 
inclusive accessible places.   

  
6.8 JCS Policy SD4 sets out requirements for high quality design, including responding positively 

to and respecting the character of the site and surroundings, and being of a scale and 
materials appropriate to the site and setting. Design should establish a strong sense of place 
and have appropriate regard to the historic environment. Policy SD10 seeks housing of the 
maximum appropriate density compatible with good design, the protection of heritage 
assets, local character and the road network.  

  
6.9 Policy A1 of the Pre-Submission City Plan requires overall improvements to the built and 

natural environment, preservation of the character of the area and appearance of the 
streescene, and appropriate bin storage. Policy C1 requires development to meet the 
highest possible standards of accessible and inclusive design. Policy E1 requires a balanced 
approach, providing for housing, and other needs whilst seeking to protect and enhance local 
landscape features that contribute to environmental quality and local distinctiveness. Trees, 
hedgerows and areas of green that contribute to local landscape character should wherever 
possible be retained and utilised to enhance development. Policy E4 seeks to ensure no 
significant adverse impacts on existing trees or hedgerows and that opportunities are taken 
for appropriate new planting on site.   

  
6.10 Policy F1 requires high quality architectural detailing, external materials and finishes that are 

locally distinctive, and developments to make a positive contribution to the character and 
appearance of the locality. Innovative modern materials will be encouraged where they 
strongly compliment local distinctiveness. Policy F2 requires hard surfacing, boundary 
treatments and planting to be appropriate to the location, and incorporate existing natural 
features where possible, and ensure adequate space for trees to mature. Policy F3 requires 
development to be designed to ensure that community safety is a fundamental principle.  

  
6.11 In relation to heritage the NPPF requires Authorities to take account of the desirability of 

sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting them to viable uses 
Page 20



consistent with their conservation, the positive contribution that conservation of heritage 
assets can make to sustainable communities including their economic vitality, and the 
desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local character and 
distinctiveness. Great weight should be given to the conservation of the designated heritage 
asset; the more important the asset the greater the weight should be. Any harm or loss 
should require clear and convincing justification; substantial harm to or loss of assets of the 
highest significance such as scheduled monuments should be wholly exceptional. Tests are 
set out if ‘substantial harm’ or ‘less than substantial harm’ to a designated heritage asset are 
identified.  

  
6.12 Policy SD8 of the JCS sets out that heritage assets and their settings will be considered and 

enhanced as appropriate to their significance. Development should aim to sustain and 
enhance their significance and put them to viable uses consistent with their conservation 
whilst improving accessibility. Policies D1 and D2 of the emerging City Plan reflect the 
guidance in the NPPF and JCS in respect of designated and non-designated heritage assets 
respectively. Policy D1 includes the requirement for protecting and enhancing heritage 
assets and their settings, conserving and enhancing the character, appearance and 
architectural quality of the area , and retaining important views into or out of the Conservation 
Area. 

  
6.13 The surrounding area includes houses of varying styles along either side of Hempsted Lane 

to the north, with more dense 20th century and more modern housing development on the 
west side of the lane further south, and beyond the site to the south and south east. The 
properties along the lane tend to be larger detached properties, with the more modern 
development including more semi detached and terraced properties. Between the 
developments the context is more open, with a paddock on the opposite side of Hempsted 
Lane, and public open space to the north east and a rugby pitch to north, with a variety of 
hedge rows and trees.  

  
6.14 The layout is largely dictated by the approved access point and the restricted developable 

area set by the outline permission. The proposals have been improved through 
pre-application discussions, and then during the application process including reorientation 
of units, relocation of garages, changes to materials/walls, all of which have improved the 
scheme in terms of design. It broadly provides for back to back blocks enabling street 
frontage and avoiding exposed gardens.  

  
6.15 The house type designs are considered acceptable. The fenestration of the 6b4p house type 

has been amended to respond to the Urban Design Officer’s comment. They appear to be 
standard house types but exhibit a degree of variation in form and articulation and include 
detailing that should sit comfortably within the site context and add visual interest. Facing 
materials are subject to a condition requiring their approval, however the applicant has, as 
part of the reserved matters submissions, amended the proposed roof tiles in response to 
concerns, now proposing a smaller format thinner tile.  

  
6.16 Great weight has been given to the preservation of the character and appearance of the 

Hempsted Lane Conservation Area. The Conservation Area has a distinctive rural character 
with domestic buildings set back from the road, also post war housing estates, with mature 
trees and historic walls contributing to the character, and has views to its surroundings given 
the elevated position above meadows and intervening spaces. The Conservation Area is 
situated on the opposite side of the road from the northern part of the site and the proposed 
buildings would be sited back into the site away from this road frontage in the manner 
required by the outline permission. Part of the site at the south western corner is within the 
Conservation Area and would be provided as public open space again as required by the 
outline permission. The Conservation Area impact was addressed at the outline stage with 
some adverse impacts identified but were concluded to be outweighed by the benefits of the 

Page 21



scheme. The reserved matters follow the principles established at the outline stage to aid 
preservation of its character and appearance, and the Conservation Officer raises no in 
principle objection to the reserved matters proposals. As such the reserved matters would 
cause no other harm additional to what was previously assessed at the outline stage, and 
would comply with the above policy context, and the requirements of Section 72 of the 
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 are satisfied.  

  
6.17 Pedestrian links 

The site is surrounded by a range of existing roads and paths, and connections to them 
would be beneficial in the interests of good sustainable design. The applicant has now 
provided a path link out of the site to the north to the east-west track by the play area. The 
existing track links Hempsted Lane at the west with the playing fields and the link out to 
Secunda Way to the east, and the new path link would provide for easy access to local 
facilities and within the wider area. A formalised path is provided down the east side of the 
site which would link to the existing path through the public open space adjacent to the north 
east. Another path link onto the open space is proposed to link with the middle of the 
development although this one would rely on provision of the missing section on the Council 
land to join up the paths. The pathways through the open space at the south now provide 
links out to logical points at the edge of the site and would enhance pedestrian linkages along 
these desire lines. Access points have also now been provided within the development to aid 
pedestrian movement along desire lines. As required by JCS Policy SD4 the integration of 
development with its surroundings and the provision of safe and legible connections are 
required to achieve good design. With the provision now made it is considered that the 
proposals meet the policy requirement.  

  
6.18 Security 

Concerns have been raised in representations about the security of the edge of the site to 
Manor Farm House. The applicant’s response to this notes that new tree planting is proposed 
between Plots 1-3, Plot 8 and Manor Farm House which would provide additional screening 
to the existing, also additional boundary hedge planting has been added to plot 8 to assist 
visual integration with the adjacent open space buffer, and a maintenance plan has been 
submitted to cover maintenance for 5 years. The two parties have also evidently now agreed 
to the provision of a fence and additional hedge planting along the common boundary. 
Overall I consider that while the proposal would facilitate public access to this side of the 
existing property where it has not been allowed before, the development would actually lead 
to more natural surveillance of the surroundings of Manor Farm House. I do not think it could 
reasonably be assumed that someone presenting a security concern would be more likely to 
act in front of a housing development than from a private field as is currently the case, and as 
such there is not detriment to security caused by the proposals, and a condition to provide 
additional measures is not necessary to make the development acceptable. The principle of 
residential development of the nearby parts of the field is established, and in light of this 
analysis I conclude that the security concerns do not amount to a harmful design impact 
arising from the reserved matters details.  

  
6.19 Heights of building/views 

The outline planning permission provides for building heights of up to 2 storeys, with some 
potential for 2.5 storey feature buildings. The Council’s Heights of Buildings SPD defines a 
series of views to the Cathedral including strategic view corridor 6 ‘Hempsted Village’, which 
is from a point immediately south of the site roughly mid way along the footpath and the view 
corridor is across the site. Policy BE.2 of the 2002 Second Deposit Local Plan requires 
development to protect the city skyline and important views, noting the particular importance 
of protecting views of the Cathedral. Policy D5 of the City Plan requires that development 
does not harm any key views of the Cathedral and other historic places of worship. As 
required by the outline permission a study has been submitted of the views to the Cathedral 
tower, which now includes digitally modelled views. The large trees at the edge of the rugby 

Page 22



ground to the north currently provide a partial screen of this view (as does the vegetation 
immediately alongside the footpath itself) however one is still able to obtain a view of the 
Cathedral tower through the gaps in the trees and above them. As such there are currently 
partially-restricted sporadic views of the Cathedral from along the footpath.  

  
6.20 The submitted visualisations show that while the ridge height of some of the southernmost 

units would be above the tower, views of the Cathedral tower would still be achieved from 
along the footpath and the development is sited down the slope as far out of the view as is 
possible. The view identified when the SPD was produced is now affected by the vegetation 
in the foreground of the Cathedral view. It is therefore considered that the proposals would 
satisfy the condition and allow for the key views, in this case partial views of the Cathedral, 
and do not involve unacceptably tall buildings in line with the SPD. 

  
6.21 Levels changes 

The streetscenes and cross sections show that the site levels would be built up and the 
impact of this should be carefully considered given the change in visual appearance that is 
likely to take place as a result of this approach. The reason for the scale of levels changes 
appears to be to facilitate foul sewer connections and avoid needing a pumping station. 
There has been a longstanding concern regarding the possible visual impact of this 
approach. The exact levels changes vary across the site but are likely to have most visual 
impact at the site edges.  

  
6.22 At the northern edge the site would rise up in one part by about 2m within about a 10m span 

from the boundary (at the road turning head). Smaller levels changes of up to around 1m 
higher would also be implemented elsewhere along the northern edge. At the east side by 
the existing open space the site would rise up about 1.3m between the site boundary and the 
adjacent road (across a c.4-5m span). At the southern edge of the proposed developable 
area the ground levels would actually be reduced – by up to approx. 1.5m in places.  

  
6.23 The proposed houses are set back slightly from the site edges but it seems clear that the 

presence of new buildings would be very apparent in views of the existing site from the 
nearby surroundings and the mitigating effects of the retained hedge/tree line would be 
somewhat less than envisaged at the outline stage with the land level and buildings in a more 
pronounced position. There would be some rather steep drops in levels e.g. next to plots 
45/46 at the northern edge. 

  
6.24 The applicant considers the levels changes to be acceptable and are needed to avoid having 

a foul water pumping station installed with its associated visual, amenity, and servicing 
impacts. They have noted that Severn Trent Water will not allow a pumping station if a gravity 
led solution is achievable). They also consider it would provide increased natural 
surveillance of the play area, and that plots in the north west corner cannot be dropped 
further to ensure Building Regulations accessibility M4(3) compliance.  

  
6.25 The proposed houses at the levels shown would result in a prominent appearance of the 

buildings including from publicly-accessed pedestrian links, albeit less so from the existing 
highways around the development. I am not convinced that the presence of a pumping 
station would necessarily be worse in terms of appearance of the development but the 
reasons for the approach are noted. The applicant believes the impact would be acceptable 
and wishes for the current proposals to be determined, and has submitted an analysis setting 
out that the maximum increase in levels for buildings is 1.4m, with an average of 0.7m 
increase. This presents a difficult judgement because the visual effect of introducing houses 
at these levels is likely to be quite striking, particularly in the context of the existing 
environment of the hedge/tree line screening a grassed field. However, I conclude that, on 
balance, in the context of the extent of visual impact to the surroundings that would be 
caused, the proposed siting of buildings within the site, and the vegetation screening (which 

Page 23



is proposed to be added to), the proposals would not amount to significant harm to the 
character of the area and landscape setting, nor create a scheme that could be said to be 
highly unattractive visually. As such it is recommended that no objection be raised in relation 
to the impact of the levels changes. 

  
6.26 Landscaping 

Planting is proposed along street frontages, as a screen to some of the proposed properties, 
and addition planting is proposed to the orchard area and the rest of the public open space 
offered at the south of the site. The hedge to the north east and west (other than around the 
access/visibility splay), and around the orchard (other than at access points) is shown to be 
retained, and enhanced in several areas with additional planting. These should all help to 
soften the impact of the buildings, help it blend into the existing landscape and enhance the 
appearance of the development.  

  
6.27 The setting back of buildings from the west side of the site (required at outline stage for 

design, landscaping and heritage reasons), is retained. This would serve to enable a large 
part of the roadside hedge to be retained (other than at the vehicular access). At the position 
of this site entrance the visibility splay required for nearby residents to see cars entering the 
site would necessitate the cutting back of the adjacent hedge line somewhat. 

  
6.28 The outline permission requires details of the restoration of the historic orchard at the south 

of the site. Further details could be dealt with later under the condition however the current 
submitted plans show the retention of this area and additional planting at the orchard area 
and as such the layout and landscaping details provided for determination here are 
considered acceptable in this respect.   

  
6.29 The comments and recommendations of the landscaping and open space consultants and 

the Tree Officer have been addressed to a satisfactory degree in the revised submissions. 
  
6.30 The landscaping proposals are now considered broadly acceptable, would enhance the 

appearance of the development and certain further details can be dealt with under condition 
16 of the outline permission if needed. The layout and landscaping would comply with the 
above policy context. 

  
6.31 Housing provision 

Policy SD11 of the JCS seeks an appropriate mix of dwelling sizes, types and tenures to 
contribute to mixed and balanced communities, and requires development to address the 
needs of the local area. It also requires housing to meet and where possible exceed 
appropriate minimum space standards, and be accessible and adaptable as far as 
compatible with local context and other policies. 

  
6.32 Affordable housing: 

The s106 agreement associated with the outline permission sets the requirements for 
affordable housing from this site and requires: 
 
Submission of an Affordable Housing Scheme – this has been provided and is under 
consideration.  
40% affordable housing. This is provided in the submission.  
 
Housing mix: 
80% affordable rent, of which; 
21% 1 bed 
35% 2 bed 
29% 3 bed 
 

Page 24



20% shared ownership, of which; 
25% 1 bed 
50% 2 bed 
25% 3 bed 
 
The s106 agreement includes a mechanism to allow the mix to be amended with the 
approval of the Council. At the time of writing this is under discussion given the applicant has 
offered a different mix to that included in the agreement.  
 
Minimum internal floor areas for types of the affordable housing, 15% of the whole 
development to be in accordance with Building Regs Cat 2 (wheelchair adaptable), and 2 
dwellings to meet the Building Regs Cat 3 wheelchair housing standard. The applicant has 
confirmed that these requirements are met by the proposal.  

  
6.33 As noted above the submitted Affordable Housing Scheme and layout differ from that in the 

legal agreement and this needs to be resolved. As above, the Housing Strategy Officers 
considered some of the original changes to be acceptable and others not. The legal 
agreement provides an ability to agree a different arrangement however the key issue for 
approving this reserved matters layout is whether the house types required by the legal 
agreement (or a different mix as agreed with the Housing Officers) can be accommodated as 
proposed in the layout. Until that is established, it is not clear whether the proposed layout 
can accord with the requirements of the legal agreement or any amended mix/tenure agreed 
pursuant to it.  

  
6.34 In this light at the time of writing the applicant has just submitted a response to the Housing 

Officer’s concerns. This changes two plots from a 4bed 6 person to a 4bed 7person house 
type. They have also confirmed that all of the 3bed units accommodate 5 persons. I am now 
awaiting the response of the Housing Officer to this proposed change. Their response will 
clarify whether an amended affordable housing mix can be accepted under the legal 
agreement and therefore whether the proposed layout can be considered compliant. 

  
6.35 Housing mix: 

The 20 affordable units comprise of 4 1-bed flats, 6 2-bed flats, 4 3-bed houses, and 2 4-bed 
houses as affordable rent, and 2 2-bed houses and 2 3-bed houses as shared ownership. 
The 30 market houses comprise of 24 4-bed houses and 6 5-bed houses. In terms of the 
housing mix the market housing is heavily slanted towards large detached properties and 
would not of itself be considered acceptable, however overall with the substantial provision of 
affordable housing, across the whole site there is a variety of property types, and the scheme 
responds to the context of the surrounding built form. In this context it is considered that the 
development would deliver an appropriate mix of housing and positively contribute to a 
mixed and balanced community. No objection is raised against Policy SD11. The critical 
issue in this balance is the level of affordable housing achieved, and it is unlikely the such a 
mix of market housing would be acceptable without such a level of provision.   

  
6.36 Traffic and transport 

The NPPF requires that development proposals provide for safe and suitable access for all 
and that development should only be prevented or refused on transport grounds where the 
residual cumulative impacts of development are severe. Policy INF1 of the JCS requires safe 
and accessible connections to the transport network 

  
6.37 Policy G1 of the Pre-Submission City Plan sets the context for working with organisations on 

local transport matters. Policy G2 sets requirements for provision of an electric vehicle 
charging point/socket at every new residential property which has a garage or dedicated 
space within its curtilage and otherwise will be strongly encouraged where feasible. Policy 
G4 supports proposals that protect and enhance convenient, safe and pleasant walking 

Page 25



environments, refers to pedestrians being at the top of the road user’s hierarchy and seeks to 
avoid proposals that disrupt desire lines or reduce pedestrian legibility or connectivity.  

  
6.38 The Highway Authority raises no objection to the proposed layout. The means of access is 

fixed from the outline stage. Tracking plans have been provided to demonstrate the 
accessibility of the layout to private, refuse, delivery and emergency vehicles and some 
minor concerns about obstructions to the tracking have now been resolved in the amended 
scheme. The main roads within the development would be offered for adoption, private 
drives would be conveyed to the properties who have rights over it.  

  
6.39 The entrance visibility splays extend into the site and would need to be included within 

adoption plans for the Highway Authority to ensure it is not obstructed by fencing or hedging. 
The applicant has confirmed that this area would be included within the relevant highway 
agreement and the planting proposals have been amended to cut back the hedge line to suit 
the visibility splay.   

  
6.40 The Highway Authority accepts the level of car parking proposed. Each unit has at least one 

space and most have considerably more. 40 garage spaces are proposed and in most 
instances there is room for at least 2 cars on the driveway in front of the garage. In addition 
10 visitor spaces are proposed around the site.  

  
6.41 In terms of cycle parking provision, space is shown in the garages for 2 cycles. For properties 

without garages cycle parking would be in sheds in rear gardens with steel fixings for 
storage. 

  
6.42 Provision for pedestrian connectivity has already been discussed above and is considered 

acceptable. 
  
6.43 Refuse collection points are located at the end of private drives other than by the main 

access where a collection point has been removed from the original position following 
concerns about its appearance at this prominent position. The applicant advises for these 
units that the highway is wide enough for bins to be on the private drive on collection day. 

  
6.44 Overall in terms of highways impact the proposed layout complies with the above policy 

context.  
  
6.45 Residential amenity 

Paragraph 127 of the NPPF provides that decisions should create places with a high 
standard of amenity for existing and future users. This is reflected in Policy SD14 of the JCS 
which requires that new development must cause no harm to local amenity including the 
amenity of neighbouring occupants. Policy F6 of the Pre-Submission City Plan requires 
residential development to meet Nationally Described Space Standards. 

  
6.46 Neighbouring occupants 

No. 67 Hempsted Lane 
No. 67 Hempsted Lane is situated to the north of the site across the track. The property is 
around 10m from the edge of the application site and would be broadly parallel with two 
proposed maisonette buildings – plots 24/25 and 45/46. An overshadowing study has also 
now been received for this property. 

  
6.47 The building at Plot 24/25 would be approximately 19m from the boundary of no. 67 and 

would face towards its rear garden, slightly angled away towards the end of no. 67’s garden. 
There is a hedge and tree line at the site boundary that would be retained, which is of varying 
heights, and additional planting is proposed here. The ground floor flat windows are not likely 
to overlook the neighbouring property given the height, separation and the hedge and garden 

Page 26



fence between. The first floor flat includes lounge and bedroom windows facing north in the 
direction of no. 67. A section has been provided through the site to the neighbouring 
property. This shows that with the proposed levels change Plot 24/25 would be sited at a 
higher level than no. 67 (approximately 1.2m higher).  

  
6.48 As a comparison, the usual separation distance required for a new development would be a 

back to back distance of 21m, which would commonly equate to around 10.5m between 
houses and the neighbouring garden. In this case the separation is of 19m to the garden and 
is clearly in excess of that ‘normal’ standard in relation to new build properties. However the 
impact in the current proposals also needs to factor in the higher position of the proposed 
house given the existing and proposed levels changes. The applicants have declined to 
reduce the proposed levels change and so the proposals need to be determined based on 
the proposed arrangement.  

  
6.49 The applicant has responded on this issue and considers (their measurements) a 19.6m 

distance to plot boundary, 23.1m distance to garden to be substantially over generally 
accepted levels, that the intervening existing and proposed landscaping between protects 
views and amenity, that window to window contact would be too oblique to be material, and 
that the option of replacing block 24/25 with a single storey unit would result in a poor 
streetscene. They have also confirmed that there is no intention to reduce the existing 
perimeter vegetation.  

  
6.50 Given the finished floor levels confirmed in the submitted sections, the first floor flat windows 

would allow (using a 1.7m height eyeline) a view out at a position approximately 19m from 
the boundary of no. 67 at approximately 5.6m above the ground level of no. 67. There is an 
outbuilding at the rear of no. 67’s garden at the nearside corner. The existing hedge/tree line 
is lower in the section parallel with plot 24/25 such that a view through would be possible 
currently. The new planting in this location referred to by the applicant shows a native hedge 
being planted along the southern edge of the existing hedge/tree line. If this successfully 
grows it would help reinforce the existing vegetation screen. The species planted where the 
existing vegetation is lower should grow faster and could be allowed to grow to full height. 
The mix includes hawthorne and field maple which would grow tall enough to intervene in the 
potential view across to the garden of no. 67. They are not evergreen but do have quite 
dense canopies. This effect does rely on proper maintenance and the planting maintenance 
schedule has been revised to cover this element of the planting to the satisfaction of the 
Council’s Landscaping Consultant.     

  
6.51 In conclusion I estimate that new residents in this property would currently be afforded a view 

across towards no. 67’s garden however the separation distance of 19m is significant and in 
due course, the additional planting could provide an additional screening effect. Even 
accounting for the higher levels, the separation distance, in the context of the rear garden of 
no. 67, and the likelihood of, in due course, additional planting further ameliorating any 
potential overlooking, is such that on balance, the level of intrusion and impact on amenity 
arising from overlooking would not be significant.  

  
6.52 The overshadowing study demonstrates the effect through various points in the year and 

shows that block 24/25 would not cause any significant overshadowing of no. 67. Some 
overshadowing of the garden is likely during the winter but this is also likely to be caused by 
the existing hedge/tree line and boundary fence. Coupled with the time of year it is not 
considered that this would amount to significant harm. Given the separation distance the 
proposals would not be overbearing or cause a significant loss of light to no. 67. 

  
6.53 The building at plot 45/46 would be around 20m from the boundary of no. 67. The ground 

floor flat windows are not likely to overlook the neighbouring property given the height, 
separation and the hedge/tree line and garden fence between. Plot 44/45 is also more in line 

Page 27



with the house rather than the garden of no. 67. The first floor flat includes living room, 
bedroom and bathroom windows facing towards no. 67. The section drawing shows that plot 
45/46 would be at a ground level approximately 2m higher than no. 67.   

  
6.54 The finished floor levels indicate that the first floor windows would allow (again with a 1.7m 

eyeline) a view out at 20m from the boundary at around 6.4m above the ground level of no. 
67. The dense hedge/tree line here provides screening up to approximately 6m height at 
least. The applicants have provided written confirmation that there is no intention to reduce 
the perimeter vegetation and a maintenance plan has been submitted. Given the relationship 
between the properties, the separation between them and the presence of the retained (and 
enhanced) boundary tree/hedge line, the proposed property would not cause significant 
harm by overlooking this neighbouring property and there would also be no significant harm 
to privacy from window to window contact.  

  
6.55 The overshadowing study indicates that block 45/46 could cause some overshadowing of the 

end part of the rear garden of no. 67 in the late afternoon in Spring and Autumn but no impact 
in summer, and cause greater overshadowing impacts in mid afternoon in the winter, 
although again this is at a time where the existing hedge/tree line and boundary fence are 
likely to have a similar effect and use of the garden is less likely. Given the modest extent of 
impacts and times of year this is not considered to amount to significant harm. Given the 
separation distance this new building would not be overbearing or cause significant loss of 
light.  

  
6.56 Manor Farm House 

Manor Farm House is situated to the west side of the site and representations have been 
received in relation to the impact of the development on this property and its residents. This 
property includes the main house sited to the middle of the plot and, in closest proximity to 
the proposed built development at its northern end, a pitched roof garage and an area used 
for car parking. At the north eastern edge behind the garage is a 1-2m high hedge. There is a 
garden area that borders the application site with a low level fence at the boundary, to the 
south of the garage/parking area. Beyond this at the southern part of the property there is a 
1.8m close boarded fence. There are also some trees at the edge of the plot affording some 
screening and again it is noted that the applicant does not intend to reduce this existing 
vegetation. As noted the proposed development includes an open corridor of grassed space 
down the western edge such that the proposed houses are set in from the boundary. The 
farmhouse includes side windows facing towards the application site but the separation 
distance of over 26m at an angle is such that no harm would be caused from window to 
window contact.   

  
6.57 The two nearest properties would be: 

 
Plot 1, with the proposed house being northwest facing and sited around 9m from the 
boundary at the nearest point. It is a two storey dwelling proposed (5m high to eaves, 8.5m to 
the roof ridge), sited diagonally to the farmhouse plot. The proposed property has habitable 
room windows in the front elevation but given the orientation and resultant view that could be 
afforded, the separation distance, position of the farmhouse’s garage at the near boundary 
and use of the near part of the farmhouse plot, and the vegetation screening, it is not 
considered that significant harm from overlooking would arise. Given the orientation no harm 
to light, or overshadowing would arise, and no significant overbearing effect would arise 
given the relationship.  
 
Plot 8 would be sited side-on to the farmhouse plot at a distance of around 10m between the 
proposed house and the boundary of the farm house. It would be broadly parallel with the 
farmhouse’s garage. This would be the same two storey dwelling type as plot 1 and has no 
first floor habitable room windows in the side elevation that would overlook the property. 

Page 28



There is a possible view from the front windows of the proposed property diagonally down to 
the farm house’s garden but given the angled view it is not considered that this would lead to 
a significant impact on privacy. No overshadowing study has been provided in respect of 
these units, however given the separation distance, the orientation of the properties, the 
scale of the proposed dwelling and the use of the nearest parts of the farmhouse plot, it is 
unlikely that any significant harm would arise from overshadowing or loss of light. Given the 
separation distance and the use of the farmhouse plot at the near edge, the proposed 
building would not be overbearing either.   

  
6.58 The 5m lampposts previous situated close to the east side boundary adjacent to the existing 

residential properties, have now been removed.  
  
6.59 Given the proposed siting of properties it is not considered that the proposals would cause 

any significant harm to residents of any other properties in the locality.  
  
6.60 Proposed occupants’ living conditions 

All units benefit from a rear to rear separation of at least 20.3m. In this instance it is 
considered that reasonable living conditions would be provided.  

  
6.61 Where there is a side elevation of a property behind a garden, all units benefit from a back to 

side distance of at least 10.3m, and in those instances the gardens are not entirely enclosed 
to the rear by the neighbouring property’s flank wall. Again it is considered that reasonable 
living conditions would be provided in this respect.  

  
6.62 In terms of the provision of private amenity space several of the smallest gardens shown in 

the original plans have now been increased in size and all properties are now considered to 
have adequate amenity space for future occupants.  

  
6.63 In terms of space standards I am satisfied that the various house and flat types provide an 

acceptable level of internal space. 
  
6.64 Drainage and flood risk 

The NPPF requires that development is directed to the areas at lowest risk of flooding, that 
new development should take the opportunities to reduce the causes or impacts of flooding, 
should not increase flood risk elsewhere and take account of climate change. Policy INF2 of 
the JCS reflects the NPPF, applying a risk based sequential approach, requiring new 
development to contribute to a reduction in flood risk and requiring the use of sustainable 
drainage systems. Policy E6 of the emerging City Plan sets out a similar approach to making 
development safe, avoiding an increase in flood risk, the sequential and exception tests, 
requiring Sustainable Drainage Systems, incorporating climate change considerations, 
facilitating benefits to watercourses and floodplains, maintaining a buffer strip for 
maintenance and ecology. 

  
6.65 The scheme proposes to utilise the permission for the ponds on the adjacent land to the north 

east of the field for surface water drainage (not to the Hempsted Lane sewer which is raised 
in representations). As such surface water would outfall from the north east of the site to 
these ponds. A knee rail has been included to the edge of the road by the ponds given the 
proximity of the pond and the gradient. Swales are proposed as a sustainable conveyance 
method for surface water across parts of the site. The Drainage Consultant raises no 
objection to the arrangements proposed for drainage within the site. Condition 11 of the 
outline permission 13/01032/OUT requires full details of the surface water system. In terms 
of the representation about causing runoff towards the properties in The Gallops; 
consideration of the drainage proposals under Condition 11 will ensure an appropriate 
drainage system is proposed, nevertheless, the details of the surface water drainage 
submitted with this reserved matters application indicate a surface water system to capture 

Page 29



runoff from the new buildings and should not worsen any runoff to these properties from the 
site. 

  
6.66 The s106 agreement associated with the outline permission obliges the developer to 

construct the drainage infrastructure works prior to first occupation of any unit.  
  
6.67 A foul connection would be made to the east of the site across the open space to the existing 

system in the adjacent development to the east. 
  
6.68 Drainage arrangements can be fully considered pursuant to the condition, however no 

concerns are raised in relation to the proposed layout to indicate that the drainage proposals 
would not be compliant with the above policy context.  

  
6.69 Open Space 

The NPPF provides that the planning system can play an important role in facilitating social 
interaction and creating healthy, inclusive communities Policies INF3, INF4 and INF6 of the 
JCS require new residential developments to provide for any additional infrastructure and 
community facilities required to serve the proposed development. Policies OS.2, OS.3, and 
OS.7 of the 2002 Plan set out the Council’s requirements for open space. 

  
6.70 The s106 agreement sets out the requirements for public open space (POS) and requires an 

area of at least 1.56ha. The proposed POS area is the southern part of the site as per the 
area indicated at outline stage. The s106 agreement sets out a range of requirements on the 
developer in respect of providing the open space, making it available for public use, and 
transferring it to the Council. 

  
 Other issues raised in representations 
6.71 There is a septic tank or cess pit within the site serving Manor Farm House. A solution for this 

piece of infrastructure has not yet been implemented on site and it is currently an open hole 
in the ground and would be at the edge of the public open space close to Plot 8. Clearly it 
needs addressing if development of the site is to proceed. The applicants have confirmed 
that they are in discussion with the owners of Manor Farm House regarding taking the foul 
flows into the new sewer system for the development. Their proposal is that the neighbouring 
property would be connected into the site’s foul drainage and onwards to the Severn Trent 
adopted system. The applicants have confirmed that the septic tank/cess pit would be 
removed in its entirety and the surrounding area checked for residual contamination which 
would be removed and inert soil put in place, if encountered. As such the potential 
environmental and public safety issue should be removed, and the Council would be 
adopting open space with a foul sewer run beneath as opposed to the open pit.  

  
6.72 It appears that this matter simply needs to be resolved between the developer and 

neighbour. However given the current lack of certainty over its resolution and the public 
safety and possibly environmental issue that would be apparent, it is considered that a 
condition is required preventing occupation until the existing arrangement is removed and 
land remediated if required. Because in practice this involves making a connection to a 
functioning drainage system on the development site, which is already required to be in place 
prior to any occupations (by Condition 11 of the outline permission), this new proposed 
condition would bring clarity to the public safety/environmental issue concurrently with the 
existing requirements for drainage implementation and should not be any more onerous on 
the developer in terms of timings of occupations.  

  
6.73 Conclusion 

This application for approval of reserved matters has been considered in the context of the 
policies and guidance referred to above. The proposal is consistent with those policies and 
guidance in terms of principle, design, layout and landscaping, heritage, traffic and transport, 

Page 30



residential amenity, drainage and flood risk, open space, and specific environmental 
concerns; the proposal is broadly acceptable and accordingly it is recommended that 
reserved matters approval be granted if the outstanding matter of the affordable housing mix 
can be resolved in terms of the layout and house types. 

  
7.0 RECOMMENDATION OF THE CITY GROWTH AND DELIVERY MANAGER 
  
7.1 That delegated powers be given to the City Growth and Delivery Manager to GRANT 

reserved matters approval (subject to the following conditions), subject to; 
 
Receipt of information that demonstrates that the proposed layout and house types are able 
to satisfy the requirements of the s106 agreement for the site (or any amended requirements 
agreed pursuant to the provisions of the s106 agreement) in respect of the mix and tenure of 
the affordable housing, also to delegate the imposition of any further conditions necessary to 
secure the satisfactory arrangement.  

  
7.2 Condition 

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the following 
drawings: 
 
Site location plan ref. 1889 SLP-01 
Application site layout plan ref. 1889 ASL-01 Rev. H 
External works layout plan ref. 1889 EWL-01 Rev. F (* to be updated) 
Site entrance layout plan ref. 3852-101 Rev. B 
 
Detailed planting plan 1 of 2 plan ref. 2078701 SBC00 XX DR L 401 Rev. PL09  
Detailed planting plan 2 of 2 plan ref. 2078701 SBC00 XX DR L 401 Rev. PL09 
Landscape structure plan ref. 2078701 SBC 00 XX DR L 402 Rev. PL09 
Landscape specification (received by the Local Planning Authority on 13th October 2020) 
5 year landscape maintenance/Management Plan September 2020 Rev. PL03 (dated 
9.11.20) 
Tree pit & hedge details plan ref. 2078701 SBC 00XX DR L 201 Rev. 01 
 
The Silversmith floor plans ref. SI-4B-2S-P1 
The Silversmith elevations plan ref. A/1234/00/CB/02 Rev. B 
The Silversmith elevations plan ref. A/1234/00/CT/02 Rev. B 
The Luthier floor plans ref. A/1392/00/AT/S01 Rev. C, A/1392/05/AT/S01 Rev. C, 
A/1392/05/AT/S02 Rev. C 
The Luthier elevations plan ref. A/1392/00/CB/02 Rev. B 
The Luthier elevations plan ref. A/1392/00/CT/02 Rev. B 
The Luthier elevations (plots 5 & 18) plan ref. A/1392/00/TB/S02 Rev. C 
The Philosopher floor plans ref. PH-4B-2S-P1 
The Philosopher elevations plan ref. A/1507/00/CB/02 Rev. D 
The Philosopher elevations plan ref. A/1507/00/CT/02 Rev. D 
The Goldsmith floor plans ref. GO-4B-2S-P1 
The Goldsmith elevations plan ref. GO-4B-2S-CB-E 
The Goldsmith elevations plan ref. GO-4B-2S-CT-E 
The Weaver floor plans ref. WE-4B-2S-P1 
The Weaver elevations plan ref. A/1688/00/CB/02 Rev. F 
The Watchmaker floor plans ref. WA-5B-2S-P1 Rev. A 
The Watchmaker elevations plan ref. A/1901/00/CB/02 Rev. E 
The Watchmaker elevations plan ref. A/1901/00/CT/02 Rev. E 
The Baker floor plans ref. BA-2B-2S-P1 
The Baker elevations plan ref. BA-2B-2S-CB-E 
The Ploughwright floor plans ref. PW-3B-2S-P1 

Page 31



The Ploughwright elevations plan ref. A/1026PW/00/CT/02 Rev. A 
The Tillman floor plans ref. TI-3B-2S-P1 
The Tillman elevations plan ref. A/1026TI/00/CB/02 Rev. C 
2P-1B Apartment – Design sheet plan ref. 1889 2P1B/F/01 Rev. A 
2P-1B Apartment – floor areas plan ref. 2P1B-FA-01 
3P-2B Flat – Design sheet plan ref. 1889 3P2B/F/01 Rev. B 
3P-2B Flat – floor areas plan ref. 3P2B-FA-01 
Apartments – Sections plan ref. 1889 SEC/01 
6P-4B House – Design sheet plan ref. 1889 6P4B/H/01 Rev. A 
6P-4B House - floor areas plan 6P4B-FA-01 
 
Single garage plan ref. A/218/00/CB/R2/01 
Double garage plan ref. A/436/00/CB/R1/01 
Double garage plan ref. A/436/25/CBH/R1/00 
Sales garage plan ref. SG-TF/01 1903 
Proposed sub station elevations Plan ref. 1889 PE/SS01 
 
Enclosures details 1.2m estate railings plan ref. 1889 ED-12 
Enclosures details 1.8m screen wall plan ref. 1889 ED-01 
Enclosures details 1.8m close board fence plan ref. 1889 ED-02 
Enclosures details 1.8m timber personnel gate plan ref. 1889 ED-03 
Enclosures details 0.45m timber knee rail plan ref. 1889 ED-05 
 
Development cross sections plan ref. 3852-123 Rev. D 
 
Reason 
To ensure that the development is carried out in accordance with the approved plans. 
 
 
Condition 
Prior to occupation of any unit, a scheme to remove the septic tank/cess pit within the site 
serving the adjacent Manor Farm House property and remediate the land of any residual 
contamination shall be implemented in full on site in accordance with details to be submitted 
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority in advance.  
 
Reason 
In the interests of public safety and environmental health to ensure the septic tank/cess pit is 
removed alongside the implementation of the drainage scheme to ensure the open space is 
safe to use.  
 
 
Condition 
The estate railings shown on the External works layout plan ref. 1889 EWL-01 Rev. F 
parallel with units 29 to 33 shall be installed prior to making the surface water drainage 
system of the proposed development operational, and shall thereafter retained for the 
duration of the development. 
 
Reason 
To ensure the safety of the public in relation to the adjacent drainage pond proposals. 

 

Person to Contact: Adam Smith (396702) 

Page 32



 

 
  
 

Planning Application: 20/00600/REM 
  
Address: Land East Of Hempsted Lane  

Hempsted Lane  Gloucester  
  
Committee Date:  

 

 

 

 

© Crown copyright and database rights 2011 Ordnance Survey 10019169 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



15

3

HEMPSTED LANE

115

8

18

11

5

19

4

12

1

LADYWELL CLOSE

Lower Gatehouse

9

19

10

1

13

Hall

House

92

5

99

5

Sub Sta

11

20

10

25

8

THE GALLOPS

8

2

98

STIRRUP CLOSE

Peartree

27

13
6

96

14

10
4

1

67

11
8

2

28

110

11a

10

HI
LT

ON
 C

LO
SE

2017

16

Cottage

29

Bridle Court

El

2

1

NEWARK COURT

22

18

8

15

HARNESS

19.5m

11
2

Upper Gatehouse

13
0

14

9

CLOSE

14
0

15

26

9

23

Play Area

16

4

107

8

11

24

105

Manor Farm12
4

12

61

13
4

10
0

LB

57

Playing Field

1

Ordnance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2020. All rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

TH
E G

ALL
OPS

N

S

EW

Legend

Site Boundary.

JOB NO.

SCALE DATE

DRAWING TITLE

JOB TITLE

CLIENT

DESCRIPTIONREV.

REVISION

DRAWN BY

DATE

DRAWING NO.

©  H a m m o n d  A r c h i t e c t u r a l  L i m i t e d  2 0 1 8
Figured dimensions must be taken in preference to scaled dimensions and any
discrepancies are to be referred to Hammond Architectural Ltd.  Contractors,
subcontractors and suppliers must verify all dimensions on site before
c o m m e n c i n g  a n y  w o r k  o r  m a k i n g  a n y  w o r k s h o p  d r a w i n g s .

Architectural Ltd

10 Gold Tops 
Newport
NP20 4PH

01633 844970
info@hammond-ltd.co.uk

www.hammond-ltd.co.uk

e.
t.

Bellway Homes 

Hempsted Lane, Gloucester.

Site Location Plan.

@ A3

1:1250 May '20 HAL

1889 SLP-01 -

Page 35

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_1
10m

AutoCAD SHX Text_2
20m

AutoCAD SHX Text_3
40m

AutoCAD SHX Text_4
50m

AutoCAD SHX Text_5
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_6
30m

AutoCAD SHX Text_7
75m

AutoCAD SHX Text_8
100m



This page is intentionally left blank



SH
ED

SHED

SH
ED

SH
ED

876
O

PP BA 2B

SI 4B
1234

O
PP SI 4B

SI 4B1234OPP

SI 4B

1901

WA 5B
AS

SI 4B1234OPP

SI 4B
PH 4B1507AS

W
E 

4B
16

88
O

PP

15
12

O
PPG
O

 4
B

G
O

 4
B

PH
 4

B
15

07
AS

15
12

AS

G
O

 4
B

G
O

 4
B

PH 4B1507OPP

1901

WA 5B
AS

OPP
2BF

50

49

36

35

34

33

32

31

30

29

23

22

21

13

12

11

05

04

03

01

02

49

24

25

26

28

29

30
31

32

33

34

22

21

14
13

12

11

05

04
03

02

01

36

35

VP

VP

VP

Private Drive

Private Drive

Private Drive

Sales Area Note:
Plot 49 to be Show Home and garage for
Plot 49 to be Sales Office.
Sales area parking to be on Plot 50.

N

S

EW

1512
AS G

O
 4B

G
O

 4B

PH 4B
1507

AS

1512 OPP

GO 4B
GO 4B

1026
AS TI 3B

1026
AS PW

 3B

10
26

AS

TI 
3B

10
26TI 

3B
O

PP

06

07

14

15

16/17

18

1512AS

GO 4B
GO 4B

15
12

O
PPG
O

 4
B

G
O

 4
B

VP

W
E 4B

1688
O

PP

OPP
2BF

06

07

15

16

17

18
23

47/48

37

1512
O

PP

G
O

 4B
G

O
 4B

1901

WA 5B
OPP

AS

LU 4B 1392

26

27
28

38

39

40

44

45/46

24/25

PH 4B1507OPP

27

37

38

39

40

44

43

VP

46

41/42

47
48

19
01

W
A 

5B
AS

WE 4B1688AS

42

41

Pr
iv

at
e 

D
riv

e

SU
B

1026

TI 3
B

OPP

1026 AS

TI 3
B

VP

43

45

WE 4B 1688 OPP

SDGOP

DD
G

DD
G

SD
G

AS

SD
G

AS

SD
G

SD
G

DD
G

DD
G

DDG
DDG

DDG
DDG

SDGOP

DDG
DDG

SDG
SDG

SDG
AS

SDG AS

SDGAS

SDGAS

SDGOP

SDG OP

DDG
DDG

SDG
AS

SDGOP

50

VP

VP

SHED

SHED

SHED

SH
ED

SHED

SH
ED

DDG
DDG

SHED

SHED

SHED

SH
ED

SalesGarage AS

Private Drive

1512OPP

GO 4B
GO 4B

OPP

LU 4B1392

SDGAS

SDG SDG
08

09
10

1901

WA 5B
OPP19

DDG
DDG

19

1901

WA 5B
OPP

DDG
DDG

20

20

1BFM
AS

876
AS BA 2B

1BFM
O

PP

VP

14
13

DDG
DDG

WE 4B1688AS

O
P2B

FSH
ED

VP

WE 4B1688AS

09

10

08

Green Corridor
820m²/0.20ac

Historic Orchard
6,456m²/1.59ac

P.O.S.
5,856m²/1.45ac

13.1
26.4

19
.622

.2

22
.9

10m Green Corridor

10m Green Corridor

proposed gate

B

A
O

PP LU 4B
1392

OPP

LU 4B 1392

11.5

7.9

proposed footpath
link subject to negotiation
with third parties.

gaps in railings
opposite plots
11 to 13

Surface Finishes Key
Highway - Tarmac Finish
Highway Footpaths - Tarmac Finish

Drives/Parking - Block Paving
Drives/Parking - Tarmac Finish

Cut Grass paths in Orchard area
Private footpaths - Paving Slabs

Footpath - Hoggin Finish

Site Key
1.8m High Close Board Fence

1.8m High Brick Screen Wall

Affordable Rented Units

1.2m High Estate Railing

1.8m Timber Gate

Proposed retaining structure
positions

Shared Ownership Units

1 Bed Unit  M4(3) Compliant

Existing Trees and Vegetation
Retained

NOTE:
For all Landscape information refer to
Landscape Structure Plan as produced
by Soltys Brewster.

Bin Collection Point

(refer to Engineering layout)

All detached garages have been
designed to accommodate Bicycle
Storage at the garage rear.

1.8m Hit and miss fence panel
secured by concrete slotted posts
on a concrete gravel board

Garden Shed/Bicycle Storage
Shed to be set on a concrete
base with a steel fixing for a bike
to secure both wheel and frame.
To have a lock to BS3621:2004.
Size of shed dependant on
number of bedrooms.
Rotary Washing Line.
4m+ of drying line to be set in a
concrete footing.

SH
ED

Garden Equipment

JOB NO.

SCALE DATE

DRAWING TITLE

JOB TITLE

CLIENT

DESCRIPTIONREV.

REVISION

DRAWN BY

DATE

DRAWING NO.

©  H a m m o n d  A r c h i t e c t u r a l  L i m i t e d  2 0 1 9
Figured dimensions must be taken in preference to scaled dimensions and any
discrepancies are to be referred to Hammond Architectural Ltd.  Contractors,
subcontractors and suppliers must verify all dimensions on site before
c o m m e n c i n g  a n y  w o r k  o r  m a k i n g  a n y  w o r k s h o p  d r a w i n g s .

Architectural Ltd

10 Gold Tops 
Newport
NP20 4PH

01633 844970
info@hammond-ltd.co.uk

www.hammond-ltd.co.uk

e.
t.

Bellway Homes 

Hempsted Lane, Gloucester.

Application Site Layout.

1:500 May '20 HAL

1889 ASL-01 H

Plots 8-10 and 19-20 re-planned following comments
from Bellway Sales Department n garden orientation.

04/06/20.A.

Proposed tree planting removed, landscaping note
added to the site key and footpath finish within
orchard area amended.

24/06/20.B.

Knee rail added to back of verge on the road serving
plots 24-34 following Highway comments.

08/07/20.C.

Verge on the road serving plots 24-34 changed to
tarmac; Plots 28 handed; Street lighting columns
added; Footprints updated;

28/07/20.D.

Layout updated following feed back from local planning
authority: Replan to plots 11-14 & 19-21 to improve
rear garden to plot 14, relocate garage serving plot 11
and provide the required 10m green corridor. Knee
rails replaced with 1.2m high estate railings. Bin
collection point removed from the front of plot 3. Some
fences replaced with screen walls. Outline of Manor
Farm imported from OS site info. Plots 47/48 rotated
180 degrees. Rear garden sizes increased to plots 14,
41-43. Footpath link to existing open spaced added
north of plot 23.

03/09/20.E.

Plot 10 substituted to a Weaver (previously a
Goldsmith). Accommodation schedule updated. Visitor
parking space shown next to plot 10 relocated to the
front of plot 32. Ornamental hedgerows and proposed
tree locations imported from Landscape Architects site
plan. Latest tree survey info imported

25/09/20.F.

1800mm hit and miss fence and gate added in
accordance to clients request

10/11/20.G.

Northern footpath added; Footpath link between
plots 21/22 added; Gaps added to railings in front of
plots 11-13; Open space annotation added; Plots 5
& 18 changed to a Luthier.

16/11/20.H.

Page 37

AutoCAD SHX Text_9
SCALE BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text_10
10

AutoCAD SHX Text_11
20

AutoCAD SHX Text_12
40

AutoCAD SHX Text_13
50

AutoCAD SHX Text_14
0

AutoCAD SHX Text_15
30

AutoCAD SHX Text_16
5

AutoCAD SHX Text_17
2s

AutoCAD SHX Text_18
4s

AutoCAD SHX Text_19
2s

AutoCAD SHX Text_20
2s

AutoCAD SHX Text_21
2s

AutoCAD SHX Text_22
2s

AutoCAD SHX Text_23
2s

AutoCAD SHX Text_24
2s

AutoCAD SHX Text_25
1s

AutoCAD SHX Text_26
2s

AutoCAD SHX Text_27
4s

AutoCAD SHX Text_28
4s

AutoCAD SHX Text_29
2s

AutoCAD SHX Text_30
4s

AutoCAD SHX Text_31
4s

AutoCAD SHX Text_32
2s

AutoCAD SHX Text_33
4s

AutoCAD SHX Text_34
1s

AutoCAD SHX Text_35
LP

AutoCAD SHX Text_36
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_37
x1

AutoCAD SHX Text_38
RS

AutoCAD SHX Text_39
Eaves 33.48

AutoCAD SHX Text_40
Ridge 37.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_41
Eaves 30.09

AutoCAD SHX Text_42
Ridge 33.00

AutoCAD SHX Text_43
Eaves 19.70

AutoCAD SHX Text_44
Ridge 23.16

AutoCAD SHX Text_45
Eaves 22.84

AutoCAD SHX Text_46
Ridge 25.41

AutoCAD SHX Text_47
Eaves 31.10

AutoCAD SHX Text_48
Ridge 34.85

AutoCAD SHX Text_49
G.

AutoCAD SHX Text_50
Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_51
Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_52
Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_53
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_54
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_55
Stone Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_56
Private

AutoCAD SHX Text_57
Driveway

AutoCAD SHX Text_58
Hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_59
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_60
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_61
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_62
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_63
D.K

AutoCAD SHX Text_64
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_65
Stone Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_66
Stone Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_67
Stone Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_68
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_69
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_70
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_71
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_72
C/L Hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_73
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_74
C/B Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_75
Concrete P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_76
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_77
Concrete P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_78
Concrete P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_79
Concrete P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_80
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_81
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_82
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_83
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_84
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_85
I/R Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_86
I/R Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_87
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_88
I/R Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_89
I/R Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_90
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_91
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_92
Ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_93
Path

AutoCAD SHX Text_94
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_95
Ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_96
Ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_97
Ditch

AutoCAD SHX Text_98
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_99
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_100
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_101
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_102
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_103
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_104
Brick Wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_105
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_106
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_107
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_108
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_109
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_110
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_111
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_112
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_113
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_114
I/R Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_115
Private

AutoCAD SHX Text_116
Driveway

AutoCAD SHX Text_117
C/B Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_118
C/B Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_119
C/B Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_120
C/B Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_121
Hedge

AutoCAD SHX Text_122
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_123
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_124
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_125
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_126
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_127
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_128
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_129
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_130
Wooden Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_131
I/R Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_132
I/R Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_133
I/R Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_134
I/R Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_135
I/R Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_136
C/B Fence 1.9h

AutoCAD SHX Text_137
Brick wall

AutoCAD SHX Text_138
Gate

AutoCAD SHX Text_139
C/B Fence 1.9h

AutoCAD SHX Text_140
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_141
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_142
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_143
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_144
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_145
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_146
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_147
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_148
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_149
P/W Fence

AutoCAD SHX Text_150
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_151
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_152
Grass

AutoCAD SHX Text_153
Newly Planted

AutoCAD SHX Text_154
Tree's

AutoCAD SHX Text_155
Newly Planted

AutoCAD SHX Text_156
Tree's

AutoCAD SHX Text_157
Newly Planted

AutoCAD SHX Text_158
Tree's

AutoCAD SHX Text_159
Newly Planted

AutoCAD SHX Text_160
Tree's

AutoCAD SHX Text_161
Newly Planted

AutoCAD SHX Text_162
Tree's

AutoCAD SHX Text_163
Newly Planted

AutoCAD SHX Text_164
Tree's

AutoCAD SHX Text_165
Newly Planted

AutoCAD SHX Text_166
Tree's

AutoCAD SHX Text_167
Newly Planted

AutoCAD SHX Text_168
Tree's

AutoCAD SHX Text_169
Newly Planted

AutoCAD SHX Text_170
Tree's

AutoCAD SHX Text_171
PRIVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_172
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_173
PRIVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_174
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_175
PRIVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_176
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_177
PRIVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_178
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_179
PRIVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_180
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_181
PRIVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_182
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_183
PRIVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_184
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_185
PRIVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_186
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_187
PRIVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_188
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_189
PRIVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_190
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_191
PRIVATE

AutoCAD SHX Text_192
GARDENS

AutoCAD SHX Text_193
UNABLE TO

AutoCAD SHX Text_194
ACCESS

AutoCAD SHX Text_195
CHILDREN'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_196
PLAYGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_197
CHILDREN'S

AutoCAD SHX Text_198
PLAYGROUND

AutoCAD SHX Text_199
THE GALLOPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_200
THE GALLOPS

AutoCAD SHX Text_201
HEMPSTED LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_202
HEMPSTED LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_203
HEMPSTED LANE

AutoCAD SHX Text_204
LADYWELL CLOSE

AutoCAD SHX Text_205
0.90RW



This page is intentionally left blank



 Abbeydale 
 20/00752/LAW FISHM 
 2 Osprey Close Gloucester GL4 4WJ  

 Loft conversion 
 LAW 22/10/2020 

 Abbeymead 
 19/01315/FUL FISHM 
 54 Kingsmead Gloucester GL4 5DY 

 Proposed extensions and alterations to include two-storey side extension, part  
 two-storey and part single-storey rear extension and extension to the detached garage. 

 G3Y 26/10/2020 

 20/00488/FUL FISHM 
 15 Middle Croft Gloucester GL4 4RL 

 Proposed extension & alterations to existing dwelling, with associated  
 landscaping works. Alterations to front driveway 

 REFUSE 12/10/2020 

 20/00493/FUL FISHM 
 14 Farmington Close Gloucester GL4 4XA 

 Two storey extension to side 

 G3Y 26/10/2020 

 20/00648/FUL FISHM 
 2 Bay Tree Road Gloucester GL4 5WD 

 Demolition of conservatory and erection of a single storey extension to rear of  
 property. 

 G3Y 08/10/2020 

 20/00705/FUL FISHM 
 10 Sudgrove Park Gloucester GL4 4XS 

 Single-storey extension to front and side 

 G3Y 09/10/2020 

  

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



 Barnwood 
 19/01230/CONDIT RHIAM 
 The Coach House 96 Barnwood Road Gloucester GL4 3JH 

 Discharge of Conditions 3 (Samples of Materials), 9 (fire hydrants) , 11 (future  
 management and maintenance of the proposed streets), , 13 (SuDS management  
 and maintenance), 14,(flow routing plan) 19 (disposal of foul and surface water  

flows) and 20 (levels) relating to planning permission 19/01116/FUL which was for the 
demolition of the existing two storey dwelling and detached garage. Erection of 9 
dwellings with car ports and new parking area. 

 ALDIS 15/10/2020 

 20/00467/FUL ELENJ 
 17 Barnwood Avenue Gloucester GL4 3DA 

 Erection of a single-storey garden room 
 GSC 28/10/2020 

 20/00628/FUL ELENJ 
 11 Chester Road Gloucester GL4 3AX 

 Demolition of existing single skin brick built outhouse and rear lean-to  
 conservatory and formation of new single storey annexe 

 G3Y 15/10/2020 

 20/00766/FUL ELENJ 
 12 Fairwater Park Gloucester GL4 3HF 

 Demolition of Existing Garage to Build Single Storey Rear and Side Extension 

 G3Y 16/10/2020 

 20/00865/LAW FEH 
 Unit 5 Chancel Close Gloucester GL4 3SN 

 Change of use from B1 (c) - (Light industrial) to a gymnasium (now Use Class E) 

 PDV 16/10/2020 

 20/00939/CONDIT FISHM 
 183 Barnwood Road Gloucester GL4 3HH 

 Discharge of Condition 3 of planning permission 18/01257/FUL 

 27/10/2020 

  

Page 40



 Barton & Tredworth 
 20/00771/FUL FEH 
 Francis Woodcock Trading Estate Barton Street Gloucester   

 Demolition of existing office building and external alterations including the  
 creation of a new toilet block 

 G3Y 22/10/2020 

 Coney Hill 
 20/00957/CONDIT FEH 
 32 Newton Avenue Gloucester GL4 4NR  

 Discharge of Condition 3 (materials) and condition 7 (construction method  
 statement of permission 20/00157/FUL 

 ALDIS 26/10/2020 

 Elmbridge 
 20/00805/FUL ELENJ 
 11 Colebridge Avenue Gloucester GL2 0RG 

 Single storey rear and side extension 

 G3Y 20/10/2020 

 20/00817/FUL ELENJ 
 19 Grafton Road Gloucester GL2 0QP  

 Widen existing drop kerb, extend existing block paving and remove section of  
 front brick wall. 

 G3Y 23/10/2020 

20/00911/FUL ELENJ 
 10 Merevale Road Gloucester GL2 0QY  

 Single storey extension to rear of property (retrospective) 

 G3Y 23/10/2020 

 Grange 
 20/00818/PDE FISHM 
 48 Golden Close Gloucester GL4 0QZ  

 Single-storey rear extension - 6.0 metres by 5.595 metres 

 ENOBJ 13/10/2020 

Page 41



 Hucclecote 
 11/01312/PREAPP FEH 
 Hucclecote Community Centre 52-54 Hucclecote Road Gloucester GL3 3RT  

 Creation of childrens play area. 

 NPW 02/10/2020 

 20/00271/FUL FEH 
 77 Hucclecote Road Gloucester GL3 3TW  

 Demolition of the existing Garage and erection of a two bedroom dwelling 

 REFREA 22/10/2020 

 20/00448/FUL ELENJ 
 39 Kingscroft Road Gloucester GL3 3RG  

 Single storey extension to provide enlarged kitchen and garden room and  
 replacement garage 

 G3Y 21/10/2020 

20/00647/FUL RHIAM 
 Land Adjacent To 57 Elmgrove Road Gloucester GL3 3RH  

 Erection of bungalow on land adjacent to no. 57 Elmgrove Road including  
 associated parking (revised scheme).  

 

 G3Y 02/10/2020 

 20/00970/LAW ELENJ 
 12 Duncroft Road Gloucester GL3 3AS 

 Single storey rear extension which projects from rear wall of property by 3m 

 LAW 28/10/2020 

 Kingsholm & Wotton 
 20/00144/FUL ELENJ 
 Standish Sandhurst Lane Gloucester GL2 9AB 

 Extension to dropped kerb on classified road. 
 G3Y 16/10/2020 

  

 

Page 42



 20/00890/TPO JJH 
 Gloucestershire International School Wotton House Horton Road Gloucester  

 Common yews (T125, T124, T123, T122, T121, T120, T119) - all need a program of  
 work clearing dead branches and raising crown to prevent excessive shading and 
 becoming dangerous to children at school. 

 TPDECS 29/10/2020 

 Kingsway 
 20/00690/LAW SHANE. 
 41 Wittering Way Kingsway Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2DP 

 Proposed single storey rear extension and new dormers to facilitate a loft  

 LAW 06/10/2020 

 Longlevens 
 19/01302/OUT RHIAM 
 70 Church Road Gloucester GL2 0AA 

 Outline application for new 3 bed dwelling within the curtilage of 70 Church Road 

 GFY 29/10/2020 

 20/00229/FUL ELENJ 
 15 Lea Crescent Gloucester GL2 0DU  

 Two storey side extension 

 REF 02/10/2020 

 20/00666/FUL SHANE. 
 Spicy Kolkata Club Unit B Greyhound Gardens Gloucester GL2 0XH  

 Subdivision of restaurant to become 2 units (one restaurant and one convenience 
 store). 

 RET 29/10/2020 

 20/00815/FUL RHIAM 
 76 Church Road Gloucester GL2 0AA 

 Proposed change of use from Care Home for People with Learning Difficulties to  
 Private House (C3). 

 G3Y 23/10/2020 

  

Page 43



 20/00845/TPO JJH 
 Longlevens Filling Station 131 Cheltenham Road Gloucester GL2 0JH  

 Fell silver birch 

 TPDECS 06/10/2020 

 20/00866/FUL ELENJ 
 39 Little Normans Gloucester GL2 0EH 

 SINGLE STOREY REAR EXTENSION 

 G3Y 29/10/2020 

 20/00867/FUL ELENJ 
 15 Flower Way Gloucester GL2 9JD 

 SINGLE STOREY SIDE AND REAR EXTENSIONS 

 G3Y 29/10/2020 

 20/00900/FUL ELENJ 
 52 Kendal Road Gloucester GL2 0ND  

 Demolition of existing single storey rear extension and construction of a new  
 single storey rear extension. 

 G3Y 28/10/2020 

 Matson & Robinswood  
 20/00160/FUL FISHM 
 83 Redwell Road Gloucester GL4 6JJ  

 Single storey extension to front to form entrance porch and shower area for  
 disabled person 

 G3Y 30/10/2020 

 20/00499/FUL FISHM 
 37 Cranwell Close Gloucester GL4 6JR 

 TWO STOREY EXTENSION TO SIDE 
 G3Y 07/10/2020 

 20/00747/FUL FISHM 
 54 Teddington Gardens Gloucester GL4 6RJ  

 Single storey extension to side and rear. 

 G3Y 29/10/2020 

  

Page 44



 Moreland 
 20/00128/FUL SHANE. 
 217 Stroud Road Gloucester GL1 5JU  

 Proposed new dwelling at Land at 217 Stroud Road, Gloucester.  Previously  
 approved February 2007 (07/00009/FUL) 

 G3Y 09/10/2020 

 20/00200/ADV RHIAM 
 Linden Tree 73 - 75 Bristol Road Gloucester GL1 5SN  

 Signwriting to painted walls. Replacement swingsign, 2no amenity boards to  
 remote post, Entrance opening hours sign and Brass menu case. 

 GFY 22/10/2020 

 20/00203/LBC RHIAM 
 Linden Tree 73 - 75 Bristol Road Gloucester GL1 5SN  

 Replacement signage and lighting up-grade to grade II listed building. 

 G3L 22/10/2020 

 20/00729/FUL SHANE. 
 GLO12846 Bristol Road Gloucester   

 Proposed telecommunications installation: Proposed 18m Phase 8 Monopole  
 C/W wrapround Cabinet at base and associated ancillary works. 

 TELPRI 05/10/2020 

 Podsmead 
 20/00669/FUL RHIAM 
 330 Bristol Road Gloucester GL2 5DH  

 Change of Use from Light Industrial to Dog Daycare Centre (Sui Generis).  

 G3Y 23/10/2020 

 20/00868/FUL SHANE. 
 23 Laburnum Road Gloucester GL1 5PG 

 SINGLE STOREY SIDE EXTENSION AND PART GARAGE CONVERSION WITH NEW ROOF  
 ON GARAGE AND FRONT PORCH 

 G3Y 28/10/2020 

Page 45



 Quedgeley Fieldcourt 
 20/00372/FUL SHANE. 
 36 Needham Avenue Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2SF  

 PROPOSED NEW 3 BEDROOM BUNGALOW TO PLOT 
 RET 29/10/2020 

 20/00707/LAW SHANE. 
 36 Fauld Drive Kingsway Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2HL 

 Construction of single storey extension to rear of property (see supporting  
 drawings)  
 No changes to access, parking etc 

 LAW 15/10/2020 

 20/00738/COU RHIAM 
 Unit 2/3 Oakhill Court Telford Way Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 2GA  

 Proposed change of use from B8 (storage and distribution) to D2 (gymnasium). 

 G3Y 09/10/2020 

 20/00759/FUL SHANE. 
 66 Fieldcourt Gardens Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4UD 

 Additional Storey to Side Extension 

 WDN 30/10/2020 

 20/00803/CONDIT CJR 
 Unit 1A Quedgeley District Centre Olympus Park Quedgeley Gloucester GL2  

 Discharge of condition 3 (Delivery Servicing and Management Plan) on planning  
 permission ref. 20/00288/FUL. 

 ALDIS 21/10/2020 

 20/00883/TPO JJH 
 47 & 49 School Lane Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4PW  

 T1 Oak. Remove lowest branches touching the properties at 6 ·& 8 Druids Oak 

 TPDECS 29/10/2020 

Page 46



 Quedgeley Severn Vale 
 20/00390/FUL SHANE. 
 Sanctus House 1 Olympus Park Business Centre Olympus Park Quedgeley  

 Installation of a Bio Mass Boiler system within a 40ft container with external fuel 
 store. 

 G3Y 28/10/2020 

 20/00785/FUL SHANE. 
 5 Camellia Walk Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4GB 

 DEMOLISH CONSERVATORY AND CONSTRUCT REAR EXTENSION 

 G3Y 26/10/2020 

 20/00894/FUL SHANE. 
 8 Curtis Hayward Drive Quedgeley Gloucester GL2 4WL  

 Single storey extension at rear replacing existing conservatory 

 G3Y 28/10/2020 

 20/00958/CONDIT SHANE. 
 Sanctus House 1 Olympus Park Business Centre Olympus Park Quedgeley  

 Discharge of Condition 4 (delivery servicing management plan) of application  
 20/00421/COU 

 ALDIS 27/10/2020 

 Tuffley 
 20/00625/FUL SHANE. 
 12 Birchwood Fields Gloucester GL4 0AL 

 Demolish existing conservatory at rear & construct new single storey extension at rear 

 G3Y 26/10/2020 

 20/00657/FUL SHANE. 
 12 Chislet Way Gloucester GL4 0QQ 

 Single storey rear extension to replace existing conservatory 

 G3Y 09/10/2020 

  

 

Page 47



 Westgate 
 18/00681/CONDIT ADAMS 
 Land At Bakers Quay Llanthony Wharf And Monkmeadow Bounded By  

 Discharge of conditions 1 (reserved matters approval) , 8 (Strategic phasing  
 scheme), 9 (Phase principles scheme), 31 (amenity and open space), 40 (facing  

materials), 41 (surface materials), 42 (means of enclosure), 44 (Sustainable Urban 
Drainage System), 48 ·&, 49 (waste minimisation), 50 (sustainable development) , 51 
(seagull measures) , 54 (DDA), 64 (cycle parking provision) and 72 (lifetime homes) of 
permission ref. 14/00709/FUL (as varied)  

 PADIS 01/10/2020 

 20/00391/FUL RHIAM 
 Upstairs Downstairs 2 Severn Road Gloucester GL1 2LE  

 Extension to existing building and internal alterations to provide new office  
 space at first and second floor level (B1 use) and undercroft parking for use in  
 association with existing commercial property. (Amended scheme). 

 G3Y 12/10/2020 

 20/00517/CONDIT RHIAM 
 Gloucester Cathedral College Green Gloucester GL1 2LR  

 Discharge of Condition 3 - (Archaeology) of application nos.16/00625/FUL and  
 16/00743/LBC. 

 ALDIS 07/10/2020 

 20/00640/FUL FEH 
 Former St Michaels Surgery St Michaels Square Gloucester GL1 1HX  

 Conversion of vacant doctors surgery to 6 residential flats. 

 G3Y 08/10/2020 

 20/00701/CONDIT ADAMS 
 Kings Quarter Kings Square Gloucester   

 Partial discharge of condition 92 (highways construction management plan) of  
 permission ref. 18/01454/FUL for the detailed phase of Kings Square 

 PADIS 01/10/2020 

  

 

 

Page 48



 20/00703/FUL FEH 
 4 - 6 Clarence Street Gloucester GL1 1DX  

 External Renovation including: replacement of the fibre cement roof slates; 
 addition of four conservation type Velux rooflights, and replacement of two  
 existing rooflights with conservation type Velux rooflights; 
 repair/repaint of the  

 G3Y 14/10/2020 

 20/00704/LBC FEH 
 4 - 6 Clarence Street Gloucester GL1 1DX  

 External Renovation including: replacement of the fibre cement roof slates; 
 addition of four conservation type Velux rooflights, and replacement of two  

existing rooflights with conservation type Velux rooflights; repair/repaint of the front 
facade of the building; repair/repaint original windows in the front and back of the 
building; replacement of the uPVC guttering system at the rear of the building with 
powder coated aluminium with deep flow profile; reinstatement of front iron railing. 

 GLB 14/10/2020 

 20/00743/FUL SHANE. 
 13 Cathedral Views St Johns Lane Gloucester GL1 2AT  

 Extension of a roof top penthouse flat. Extension to second floor and  
 modernisation of existing elevations of building windows. 

 RET 29/10/2020 

 20/00792/LBC FEH 
 BARCLAYS 14 - 18 Southgate Street Gloucester GL1 2DH  

 External changes - Replace existing air conditioning condensing units and  
 replacement of existing HRV units  
 Internal changes -  
. Installation of new grid ceiling in most of the ground floor and first floor area.  
. Existing listed ceiling to be retained. 
. Existing AC cassette units in the ground floor and first floor to be replaced with new. 
. Existing ventilation ductworks to be replaced with new. 

 G3L 02/10/2020 

 20/00809/PRIOR RHIAM 
 Gloucester Railway Station Bruton Way Gloucester GL1 1DE  

 Prior approval for proposed alterations to existing station building and access  
 arrangements. 

 PRIOR 19/10/2020 

  

Page 49



 20/00823/FUL ADAMS 
 Orchard Square The Docks Gloucester   

 Change of use of land for a temporary period to a mixed use of the land for  
 outside seating and dining in conjunction with the use as an event space, and  
 retention of marquee for temporary period 

 G3Y 27/10/2020 

 20/00824/FUL ADAMS 
 Pillar And Lucy House Merchants Road Gloucester GL2 5RG  

 Retention of a marquee on Pillar and Lucy Square Merchants Road for a  
 temporary period 

 G3Y 09/10/2020 

 20/00831/CONDIT ADAMS 
 Orchard Square The Docks Gloucester   

 Partial discharge of Condition 3 of permission ref. 19/00755/FUL. Submission for 
 approval of the proposed layout for the Christmas Market for the 2020/21 period 
 (contained fully within Orchard Square, including the ice rink, retention of the  
 marquee currently on the site and a small number of event stalls and associated features) 

 PADIS 01/10/2020 

 20/00853/TPO JJH 
 162 Hempsted Lane Gloucester GL2 5JY  

 Black Poplar on front drive - Reduce to previous reduction points, branch lengths  
 to be cut from about 2m up to 4m. Cut from 7cm and up to 20cm diameter. Tree  
 height is approximately 19m, after reduction, it will be about 15m in height. 

 TPDECS 29/10/2020 

 20/00858/LBC SHANE. 
 9 Westgate Street Gloucester GL1 2NW  

 The property known as 9 Westgate street, Gloucester requires essential repairs  
 and decorations in order to put the property into a good condition, and to limit  
 further degradation to the building fabric. 

 WDN 27/10/2020 

  

 

 

 

Page 50



 20/00952/TRECON JJH 
 The Fountain Inn 53 Westgate Street Gloucester GL1 2NW  

 Sycamore - Overall Crown Reduction of upper crown by 3 metres bringing in  
 lower crown to suit and balance keeping the amenity it provides whilst  
 alleviating concerns re health and safety.  Removal of deadwood and climbing  
 inspection to be carried out. 

 TCNOB 01/10/2020 

 20/00985/TRECON JJH 
 39 Wellington Street Gloucester GL1 1RD 

 Sycamore (T1) - to reduce by 25% and reshape accordingly. Tree is overpowering  
 garden and shadowing the garden from sunlight. 

 TCNOB 29/10/2020 

Page 51



  

DECISION DESCRIPTIONS ABBREVIATIONS 
AAPRZ: Prior Approval Approved 
ALDIS: All Discharged 
AR: Approval of reserved matters 
C3C: Conservation Area Consent for a period of 3 years 
CAC: Conservation Area Consent 
ECREF: PDE Refused - Commenced 
ENOBJ: No Objections 
ENPDEZ: PDE Decision – No objections 
EOBJ: PDE Decision - Objection 
G3L: Grant Listed Building Consent for a period of 3 Years 
G3Y: Grant Consent for a period of 3 Years 
GA: Grant Approval 
GATCMZ: Grant approval for telecommunications mast 
GFY: Grant Consent for a period of Five Years 
GLB: Grant Listed Building Consent 
GLBGOS: Grant Listed Building Consent subject to Government Office of South 

West clearance 
GOP: Grant Outline Permission 
GOSG: Government Office of South West Granted 
GP: Grant Permission 
GSC: Grant Subject to Conditions 
GTY: Grant Consent for a period of Two Years 
GYO: Grant Consent for a period of One Year 
LAW: Certificate of Law permitted 
NOB: No objections 
NOS96 No objection to a Section 96 application 
NPW: Not proceeded with 
OBJ: Objections to County Council 
OBS: Observations to County Council 
PADIS Part Discharged 
PER: Permission for demolition 
RAD: Refuse advert consent 
REF: Refuse 
REFLBC: Refuse Listed Building Consent 
REFREA: Refuse 
REFUSE: Refuse 
RET: Returned 
ROS96: Raise objections to a Section 96 application 
RPA: Refuse Prior Approval 
SCO: EIA Screening Opinion 
SPLIT: Split decision 
TCNOB: Tree Conservation Area – No objection 
TELPRI: Telecommunications Prior Approval 
TPDECS: TPO decision notice 
TPREF: TPO refuse 
WDN: Withdrawn 

 

Page 52


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	5 Land East of Hempsted Lane, Gloucester - 20/00600/REM
	Hempsted site loc plan
	Sheets and Views
	SLP-01_Site Location Plan_A3_-_INF_


	Hempsted - Application Site Layout (Rev H)
	Sheets and Views
	1889 - Application Site Layout (Rev H)



	6 Delegated Decisions

